
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, June 10, 2014                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                               16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Meeting with the Parks and Recreation Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• End of Session Report (Covington Lobbyist Briahna Taylor) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 13, 2014 Special Joint Meeting with CEDC & Chamber Board (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Agreement with Tahoma School District for Aquatics Property Lease (Bahl) 
C-4. Approve Design Contract with Puget Sound Energy for Undergrounding Design (Vondran) 
C-5. Approve Agreement for Stormwater System Cleaning (Junkin) 
C-6. Adopt Resolution to Adopt 2015-2020 Transportation Improvement Program (Vondran) 
C-7. Accept Community Development Block Grant Contract for Jenkins Creek Park (Vondran) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. LED Street Lights Briefing (Vondran) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  June 10, 2014   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  MAY 13, 2014 SPECIAL JOINT MEETING WITH 

COVINGTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL & CHAMBER 
BOARD MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the May 13, 2014 Special Joint Meeting with 
Covington Economic Development Council & Chamber Board 
Minutes. 

 
 
 

 

1 of 98



Unapproved Draft – May 13, 2014 Special Joint Study Session with Covington Chamber of 
Commerce Board of Directors and Covington Economic Development Council Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 10, 2014 
 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Joint Study Session with Covington Chamber of Commerce Board of 

Directors and Covington Economic Development Council Minutes 
Tuesday, May 13, 2014 

 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Special Joint Study Session with the Covington Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors 
and Covington Economic Development Council was called to order in the City Council 
Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, May 13, 2014, at 
6:02 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BOARD OF DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
Joshua Lyon, Tamara Paul, Colleen Star, Dr. Richard Stedry, and Zach Steele. 
 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Kathy Fosjord, Debbie Markwald, Jessica Oliver, Scott Pudwell, Andrea Steele, and Jim Wene. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mike Hanratty, Kevin Holland, Laura Roth, Rick Oliveira, Steven Pand, Zach Steele, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Hugh Kodama, Jim Hutchinson, and Josh Parnell. 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Karla Slate, 
Communications & Marketing Manager; Joey Meisenheimer, Community Development 
Department Intern; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the joint study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to approve the agenda. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Branding Implementation. 
 

2 of 98



Unapproved Draft – May 13, 2014 Special Joint Study Session with Covington Chamber of 
Commerce Board of Directors and Covington Economic Development Council Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 10, 2014 
 
 
CEDC Co-Chairs Jeff Wagner and Rick Oliveira introduced this item and then turned it over to 
Communications & Marketing Manager Karla Slate who gave the presentation. 
 
The groups provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Slate provided responses. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:32 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

3 of 98



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 10, 2014 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #31113-31152, Including ACH Payments in the Amount of 
$1,527,817.50, Dated May 28, 2014. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #31113-31152, Including ACH 
Payments in the Amount of $1,527,817.50, Dated May 28, 2014. 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 

4 of 98



5 of 98



6 of 98



7 of 98



8 of 98



9 of 98



10 of 98



11 of 98



 Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 10, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 

THE TAHOMA SCHOOL DISTRICT TO EXTEND THE AQUATIC CENTER 
GROUND LEASE FOR AN ADDITIONAL FIVE YEARS WITH NO COST TO 
THE CITY. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 1. Tahoma School District Ground Lease Agreement, Updated 2014 
 
PREPARED BY:  Rachel Ann Bahl, Aquatics Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION:   
Staff is seeking council’s approval of an updated five year lease with the Tahoma School District 
for use of the land at the Covington Aquatic Center. The original forty year Ground Lease 
Agreement between King County and the Tahoma School District was transferred to the city of 
Covington through an Assignment Agreement in 2004. There are no direct costs associated with 
the Ground Lease Agreement. 
 
The original Ground Lease Agreement includes the grounds on which the Covington Aquatic 
Center is located and forty additional parking spots allocated specifically for Aquatic Center 
customers. The School District will provide all convenient and necessary easements for utilities, 
ingress, and egress, and the City of Covington is responsible for all charges for utilities or 
governmental charges or taxes levied against the property for the duration of the lease. 
 
The updated Ground Lease Agreement extends the original agreement, under the same 
conditions, for five additional years, with the option to renew for another five years at the 
expiration of that term. Other minor adjustments to the Ground Lease Agreement language have 
been recommended by the City Attorney to clarify terms which have been accepted by the 
Tahoma School District. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
1. Negotiate for additional changes to the Ground Lease Agreement. 
2. Not renew the Ground Lease Agreement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No fiscal impact. 
 
 
 
 
 

12 of 98



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance           Resolution   __ X__ Motion   _____Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to sign the Tahoma School District 
Ground Lease Agreement. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

13 of 98



ATTACHMENT 1

14 of 98



15 of 98



16 of 98



 Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 10, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 

PUGET SOUND ENERGY (PSE) FOR THE DESIGN OF UNDERGROUNDING 
THE POWER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM ON SR 516 FROM JENKINS CREEK 
TO 185TH AVENUE SE (CIP 1127). 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1. Schedule 74 Underground Conversion – Project Design Agreement 
 
PREPARED BY: Don Vondran, Public Works Director and Fred French, Special Projects 
 
EXPLANATION:  
This project includes the conversion of the overhead electrical distribution system on SE 272nd 
Street, (SR 516/Kent-Kangley) from Jenkins Creek to 185th Avenue SE to an equivalent 
Underground Distribution System. 
 
In order for the Underground Distribution System to be completed, an agreement with PSE is 
required to complete the final design and cost estimates for the conversion work.  An agreement 
for the physical conversion work will be considered after the final design and estimates are 
completed. 
 
The SR 516 Conversion Project will replace PSE’s existing overhead electrical distribution 
system with an Underground Distribution System within the following area (the “Conversion 
Area”):  SR 516 (Kent-Kangley) from approximately 420’ west of Jenkins Creek to 
approximately 150’ east of 186th Avenue SE.  The Conversion Project is approximately 2,950 
feet in length. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Keep the utilities above ground and remove the underground conversion component from the 
CIP project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The preliminary estimate (design and construction) for the total undergrounding component of 
CIP 1127 is between $975,000 and $1,460,000.  The City portion of this work will be 40% (PSE 
covers the rest) of the total cost or between $390,000 and $584,000.  The design portion is 
expected to cost between $72,000 and $109,000.  As part of the agreement, PSE will produce a 
more detailed estimate and schedule to complete the design work.  Upon receiving that estimate 
and schedule, the city has ten business days to give PSE a written notice to proceed with design 
or can choose to terminate the contract without incurring any costs.   We are requesting approval 
to enter into a design agreement with PSE based on a preliminary design estimate of $109,000.  

17 of 98



These costs are included in the scope and estimate of the project and would be reimbursable by 
the grant/appropriation.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:            Ordinance           Resolution     X    Motion             Other 

  
Council member _________ moves, Council member_______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with 
Puget Sound Energy regarding the design for undergrounding of power for 
the SR 516 – Jenkins Creek to 185th Avenue SE Project (CIP 1127) in an 
amount not to exceed $109,000. 

 
REVIEWED BY:   City Manager, Finance Director, City Attorney 

18 of 98



ATTACHMENT 1

19 of 98



20 of 98



21 of 98



22 of 98



23 of 98



24 of 98



25 of 98



26 of 98



 Consent Agenda Item C-5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 10, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR 

SERVICES WITH EVERSON’S ECONO-VAC, INC. FOR STORMWATER 
SYSTEM CLEANING. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Bid Proposal Spreadsheet 
2. Agreement for Services for Stormwater System Cleaning 

 
PREPARED BY:  Ross Junkin, Maintenance Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The Public Works Department solicited bids from all the catch basin cleaning/vactoring/jet 
rodding companies identified on the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) Small 
Works Roster.  Sixteen companies requested the bid specifications packet.  Seven companies 
provided complete bid proposals for the service.  The lowest bid (Everson’s Econo-Vac, Inc.) is 
listed below. 
 

Everson's Econo-Vac, Inc. 
YEAR 1 

           
Item No. Description 

Bid 
Qty Unit Unit Rate Total Amount 

1 Catch Basins - Type I 975 Each 33.95  $33,101.25 
2 Catch Basins - Type II 321 Each 44.50  $14,284.50 
3 Stormfilters 124 Each 69.75  $8,649.00 

Year 1 Total  $56,034.75 

      YEAR 2 
           

Item No. Description 
Bid 
Qty Unit Unit Rate Total Amount 

4 Catch Basins - Type I 830 Each 33.95  $28,178.50 
5 Catch Basins - Type II 150 Each 44.50  $6,675.00 
6 Pre-Settling Tanks 12 Each 700.00  $8,400.00 

Year 2 Total  $43,253.50 

      

27 of 98



 

YEAR 3 
           

Item No. Description 
Bid 
Qty Unit Unit Rate Total Amount 

7 Catch Basins - Type I 772 Each 33.95  $26,209.40 
8 Catch Basins - Type II 270 Each 44.50  $12,015.00 
9 Stormfilters 124 Each 69.75  $8,649.00 

Year 3 Total  $46,873.40 

      GRAND TOTAL (YEARS 1 + 2 + 3)  $146,161.65 

      ADDITIONAL HOURLY SERVICES 
         

Item No. Description Unit 
Hourly 
Rate 

  10 Pipe Jetting/Cleaning Hour  $185.00 
  11 Emergency Response Hour  $223.00 
   

Staff requests the City Council to award the Stormwater System Cleaning Agreement to the 
lowest, most qualified bidder, Everson’s Econ-Vac, Inc., for a three (3) year agreement in an 
amount not to exceed $180,000 to clean the stormwater systems of Covington as outlined in the 
agreement. 
 
The stormwater system cleaning agreement will include additional funds for pipe cleaning and 
emergency response (approximately $10,000/yr).  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Reject all bids and re-advertise the project for competitive bids later.   
 
The staff recommends entering into the agreement at this time.  The bid is a good one and 
bidding the project again will not likely yield a better price. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Agreement for Services with Everson’s Econo-Vac, Inc. for Stormwater System Cleaning 
will cost $180,000 including discretionary items (Pipe Jetting/Cleaning and Emergency 
Response). 
 
Pipe jetting is a necessary component in maintaining the storm system. The city anticipates 
spending approximately $10,000/yr for this work.  
 
Covington’s 2014 budgeted amount for this activity is $90,000 (Surface Water Management 
Fund) of which we anticipate spending $66,000. Last year’s (2013) stormwater cleaning low bid 
(awarded) came in at approximately $74,000 (without pipe jetting costs). 
 
The contact is written with a not to exceed amount of $180,000.  Some of the work is 
discretionary and emergent in nature.  These tasks will be completed as issues are identified in 

28 of 98



order to keep the systems functioning at an appropriate level and to meet federal and state 
requirements for system maintenance.  Because of these increased mandatory requirements, 
these services must be provided.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:              Ordinance             Resolution      X      Motion            Other 
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute an Agreement for 
Services with Everson’s Econo-Vac, Inc. for Stormwater System Cleaning. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

29 of 98



C
om

pa
ny

 N
am

e
Ye

ar
 1

B
id

 A
m

ou
nt

Ye
ar

 2
B

id
 A

m
ou

nt
Ye

ar
 3

B
id

 A
m

ou
nt

To
ta

l
B

id
 A

m
ou

nt
Pi

pe
 J

et
tin

g 
H

ou
rly

 R
at

e

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
R

es
po

ns
e 

H
ou

rly
 R

at
e

Si
gn

ed
 B

id
 

Pr
op

os
al

Eq
ui

pm
en

t 
In

ve
nt

or
y

D
is

po
sa

l S
ite

s

1
E

ve
rs

on
's

 E
co

no
-V

ac
, I

nc
.

 $
   

 5
6,

03
4.

75
 

 $
   

 4
3,

25
3.

50
 

 $
   

 4
6,

87
3.

40
 

14
6,

16
1.

65
$ 

   
 

18
5.

00
$ 

  
22

3.
00

$ 
  

X
X

X

2
O

ls
on

 B
ro

th
er

s 
P

ro
-V

ac
, L

LC
 $

   
 7

4,
56

8.
56

 
 $

   
 5

2,
89

3.
63

 
 $

   
 6

2,
34

6.
17

 
18

9,
80

8.
36

$ 
   

 
23

0.
00

$ 
  

27
5.

00
$ 

  
X

X
X

3
P

ho
en

ix
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

In
c.

 $
   

 6
5,

65
5.

22
 

 $
   

 7
6,

97
5.

68
 

 $
   

 5
4,

88
8.

61
 

19
7,

51
9.

51
$ 

   
 

19
0.

00
$ 

  
25

5.
00

$ 
  

X
X

X

4
N

or
th

w
es

t C
as

ca
de

, I
nc

. (
D

B
A

 F
lo

w
ha

w
ks

)
 $

   
 7

0,
33

7.
62

 
 $

   
 7

0,
04

0.
59

 
 $

   
 6

0,
53

1.
51

 
20

0,
90

9.
72

$ 
   

 
18

0.
00

$ 
  

18
0.

00
$ 

  
X

X
X

5
B

es
t P

ar
ki

ng
 L

ot
 C

le
an

in
g 

In
c.

 $
   

 9
2,

87
2.

55
 

 $
   

 6
8,

65
6.

92
 

 $
   

 7
7,

74
4.

57
 

23
9,

27
4.

04
$ 

   
 

17
5.

00
$ 

  
17

5.
00

$ 
  

X
X

X

6
V

en
til

at
io

n 
P

ow
er

 C
le

an
in

g,
 In

c.
 $

  1
85

,0
72

.8
6 

 $
  1

09
,9

03
.2

0 
 $

  1
78

,6
53

.5
2 

47
3,

62
9.

58
$ 

   
 

19
2.

00
$ 

  
19

2.
00

$ 
  

X
X

X

7
D

ra
kk

ar
 In

du
st

rie
s

 $
  2

71
,8

63
.8

1 
 $

   
 7

7,
01

8.
03

 
 $

  3
11

,1
02

.1
4 

65
9,

98
3.

98
$ 

   
 

17
5.

00
$ 

  
17

5.
00

$ 
  

X
X

X ATTACHMENT 1

30 of 98



CITY OF COVINGTON 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
 
 
Between:  City of Covington and Everson’s Econo-Vac, Inc. 
Project:  Stormwater System Cleaning 
Commencing: June 10, 2014 
Terminating:  June 10, 2017 
Amount:  Not to Exceed $180,000 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES (“Agreement”) is entered into this 10th day 
of June, 2014, by and between the City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal 
corporation, and Everson’s Econo-Vac, Inc. (“Contractor”), a corporation. 
 
 RECITALS: 
 
 A. The City seeks the temporary services of a skilled independent contractor 
capable of working without direct supervision to perform stormwater system cleaning 
services on behalf of the citizens of Covington; and 
 
 B. The City has taken the lead administrative role of requesting bids for said 
services and has selected the Contractor to perform said services; and 
 

C. The Contractor has the requisite skill and experience necessary to provide 
said services; and 
 
 D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions 
under which the Contractor will perform said services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements 
set forth herein, the City and the Contractor do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does 
hereby engage the Contractor and the Contractor does hereby agree to perform on 
behalf of the City the services more particularly described herein.   
 
 2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, 
the Contractor shall perform the services described on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference (“Services”), in a manner consistent with the 
accepted practices for similar services, performed to the City’s satisfaction, within the 
time period prescribed by the City and pursuant to the direction of the City Manager or 
his or her designee.  In performing the Services, the Contractor shall comply with all 
federal, state and local laws and regulations, including, without limitation, all City codes, 
ordinances, resolutions, standards and policies, as now existing or hereafter adopted or 
amended, that may be applicable to its performance.  To the extent required by law, the 
Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay no less than the prevailing wage rate to 
employees performing work under this Agreement and shall submit a “Statement of 
Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages” and an “Affidavit of Wages Paid” in compliance with 
RCW 39.12. 

ATTACHMENT 2

31 of 98



 
 3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a 
period commencing upon execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, 
but in any event no later than June 10, 2017, unless earlier terminated under the 
provisions of this Agreement.  This Agreement may be extended for additional periods 
of time upon the mutual written agreement of the City and the Contractor.  Time is of 
the essence in each and every term of this Agreement.  
 

4. Compensation and Method of Payment.  
 
  4.1 Compensation.  In consideration of the Contractor performing the 
Services, the City agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed $180,000. 
 
  4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment for Services shall be made after the 
Services have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a form 
acceptable to the City within thirty (30) days of performance of the Services, and the 
same is approved by the appropriate City representative.  Payment shall be made by 
the City no later than ten (10) days after the City’s Council approval of the invoiced 
amount.   
 
  4.3 First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the 
Contractor shall return to the City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification 
Number and Certification”, also known as IRS Form W-9. 
 
  4.4 Contractor Responsible for Taxes.  The Contractor shall be solely 
responsible for the payment of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result 
of the performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
 5. Warranty.  The Contractor warrants that it has the requisite training, skill 
and experience necessary to provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and 
licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities, including but not limited 
to being registered to do business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of 
Covington business license.  The Contractor shall be responsible for the professional 
quality, technical adequacy and accuracy, timely completion and coordination of all 
plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports and other services prepared or 
performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Contractor shall perform its work in 
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of 
professional care, skill, diligence and competence as are normally exercised by other 
members and/or firms of the profession in good standing working under the same or 
similar conditions and circumstances and in similar communities as the services 
provided by the Contractor under this Agreement.  The Contractor shall be responsible 
for the professional standards, performance and actions of all persons and firms 
performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor.  The City shall 
also have the right to deduct from payments to the Contractor any costs or damages 
incurred by the City, or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the 
Contractor’s failure to comply with the requirements of the Agreement or failure to meet 
the professional standard of care and skill, or both. The City’s approval of plans, 
drawings, designs, specifications, reports and other products of the professional 
services rendered hereunder shall not in any way relieve the Contractor of responsibility 
for the technical adequacy or accuracy thereof.  Neither the City’s review, approval, 
acceptance of, and/or payment for any services shall be construed to operate as a 

32 of 98



waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement.   
 

6. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original and copies of 
records, reports, designs, files, documents, drawings, specifications, data or 
information, regardless of form or format, and all other materials prepared or produced 
by the Contractor in connection with the Services shall be the property of the City 
whether the project for which they were created is executed or not.  At the termination 
or cancellation of this Agreement, any and all such records or information remaining in 
the possession of the Contractor shall be delivered to the City.   
 
 7. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City 
and the Contractor that the Contractor shall be an independent contractor and that the 
City shall be neither liable nor obligated to pay the Contractor sick leave, vacation pay 
or any other benefit of employment.  The Contractor shall pay all income and other 
taxes due.  Industrial or any other insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, 
regardless of whether such may provide a secondary or incidental benefit to the 
Contractor, shall not be deemed to convert this Agreement to an employment contract.  
The Contractor will be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, 
employees, sub contractors or representatives during the performance of this 
Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relation of 
employer and employee or principal and agent between the parties hereto.  The 
Contractor shall have the sole judgment of the means, mode or manner of the actual 
performance of this Agreement.  The Contractor, as an independent Contractor, 
assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
 8. Indemnification.  To the maximum extent permitted by law, Contractor 
shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Covington and all of its officials, 
employees, principals and agents from all claims, demands, suits, actions, and liability 
of any kind, including injuries to persons or damages to property, which arise out of, are 
connected with, or are due to any errors, omissions or negligent acts of Contractor, its 
employees, agents, volunteers or representatives in performance of this Agreement; 
provided, however, that if (and only if) the provisions of RCW 4.24.115 apply to the 
work and services under this Agreement and any such damages and injuries to persons 
or property are caused by or result from the concurrent negligence of Contractor, its 
employees, agents, volunteers or representatives and the City or its employees, agents, 
or representatives, the indemnification applies only to the extent of the negligence of 
Contractor, its employees, volunteers, agents, or representatives.  In the event of any 
such claims, demands, suits, actions, and lawsuits, Contractor shall assume all costs of 
defense thereof, including administrative and legal fees incurred by the City, and of all 
resulting judgments that may be obtained against the City or any of its officers, 
principals, agents, or employees.  If resulting there from, any lien is placed upon 
property of the City or any of its officers, principals, agents, or employees, Contractor 
shall at once cause the same to be dissolved and discharged by giving bond or 
otherwise.  Contractor specifically assumes potential liability for actions brought by 
Contractor’s own employees against the City and for that purpose Contractor 
specifically waives, as respects the City only, any immunity under the Worker's 
Compensation Act, RCW Title 51; and Contractor recognizes that this waiver was the 
subject of mutual negotiation and specifically entered into pursuant to the provision of 
RCW 4.24.115, if applicable. In the event either party incurs attorney's fees, costs or 

33 of 98



other legal expenses to enforce the provisions of this section against the other party, all 
such fees, costs and expenses shall be recoverable by the prevailing party. 
 
 The provisions of this Section shall survive any expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

9. Insurance.  The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of 
the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property 
which may arise from or in connection with the performance of work hereunder by the 
Contractor, its agents, representatives or employees.  Contractor’s maintenance of 
insurance as required by the agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the 
Contractor to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City of 
Covington’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity. The Contractor shall 
at a minimum obtain and carry the following insurance in such forms and with such 
carriers who have a rating satisfactory to the City:  
 

9.1 Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in 
amounts sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington;  

 
9.2 Commercial general liability insurance covering liability arising from 

premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury 
and written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not 
less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, 
including personal injury or death, products liability and property damage.  

 
9.3 Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired 

and leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a 
substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of 
liability not less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury, including personal injury 
or death and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide 
contractual liability coverage.   
 

The City of Covington shall be named as additional insured on all such insurance 
policies, with the exception of workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Contractor 
participates in a state-run workers’ comp program.  The Contractor shall provide original 
certificates of insurance and a copy of the amendatory endorsement, concurrent with 
the execution of this Agreement, evidencing such coverage and, at City's request, 
furnish the City with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of payment of 
premiums or fees of such policies.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a 
current A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII. All insurance policies shall contain a 
clause of endorsement providing that they may not be terminated or materially 
amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) days prior written 
notice to the City.  If the Contractor's insurance policies are "claims made," the 
Contractor shall be required to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) 
years from the date this Agreement is actually terminated or upon project completion 
and acceptance by the City.  The Contractor's failure to maintain such insurance 
policies shall be grounds for the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. 
 

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 

34 of 98



10. Books and Records.  The Contractor agrees to maintain books, records, 
and documents which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related 
to the performance of the Services and maintain such accounting procedures and 
practices as may be deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all 
funds paid pursuant to this Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all 
reasonable times, to inspection, review or audit by the City, its authorized 
representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized by law to 
monitor this Agreement. 
 
 11. Termination.   
 
  11.1 Prior to the expiration of the Term, this Agreement may be 
terminated immediately, with or without cause, by the City.  The Contractor may 
terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days notice to the City.  In the event of 
termination or suspension, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, 
worksheets, models, reports or other materials prepared by the Contractor pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be submitted to the City within five (5) days of the date of 
termination. 
 
  11.2 In the event this Agreement is terminated or suspended, the 
Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all services satisfactorily performed and 
reimbursable expenses incurred to the date of termination. 
 
  11.3 This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal 
remedies it may otherwise have for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any 
provision of this Agreement.  The remedies provided in this paragraph shall be in 
addition to any other remedy the City may have at law or in equity. 
 

12. Discrimination.  In all Contractor services, programs or activities, and all 
Contractor hiring and employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, 
there shall be no discrimination by the Contractor or by the Contractor's employees, 
agents, subcontractors or representatives against any person because of sex, age 
(except minimum age and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, 
marital status or the presence of any disability, including sensory, mental or physical 
handicaps, unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification in relationship to 
hiring and employment.  This requirement shall apply, but not be limited to the following:  
employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The Contractor shall 
not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
or any other applicable federal, state or local law or regulation regarding non-
discrimination. Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of 
this Agreement by the City and, in the case of the Contractor's breach, may result in 
ineligibility for further City agreements.   
 
 13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Contractor shall not assign or transfer 
any interest in this Agreement or subcontract any portion of the services contemplated 
hereunder without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
 14. Conflict of Interest.  The Contractor represents to the City that it has no 
conflict of interest in performing any of the services described herein.  It is recognized 

35 of 98



that the Contractor may or will be performing services during the Term for other parties; 
provided, however that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or 
interfere with the Contractor’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the 
Contractor is asked to perform services for a project with which it may have a conflict, 
the Contractor shall immediately disclose such potential conflict to the City.  The 
Contractor agrees to resolve any actual conflicts of interest in favor of the City. 
 
 15. Non-appropriation of Funds.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated or 
allocated for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the City will so 
notify the Contractor and shall not be obligated to make payments for services or 
amounts incurred after the end of the City’s current fiscal period.  This Agreement shall 
terminate upon the completion of all remaining services for which funds are allocated.  
No penalty or expense shall accrue to the City in the event that the terms of this 
provision are effectuated. 
 
 16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached 
hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject 
matter of this Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other 
than those contained herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous 
communications, negotiations, representations or agreements, either verbal or written, 
between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 17. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by 
writing signed by all parties hereto.   
 
 18. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default 
immediately upon occurrence shall not waive such breach or default.  Failure of the City 
to declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the City's right to declare 
another breach or default. 
 
 19. Successors.  Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 above, this 
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties, their respective 
heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 20. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to be severable.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of 
this Agreement shall not affect the other provisions hereof, and the Agreement shall be 
construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of 
this Agreement.  
 
 21. Notices.  All notices, payments and other communications hereunder shall 
be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or 
mailed, by first class or certified mail, with postage prepaid, 
 
  if to the Contractor, to: 
 

Lisa A. Everson 
Everson’s Econo-Vac, Inc. 
P.O. Box 428 
Sumner, WA  98390 

 

36 of 98



or to such other person or place as the Contractor shall furnish to the City in writing; 
and 
 

if to the City, to: 
 

   City of Covington 
   Attn:  Maintenance Supervisor 
   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100 
   Covington, WA  98042 
 
or to such other person or place as the City shall furnish to the Contractor in writing. 
 

Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if 
mailed, upon the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of 
mailing. 
 
 22. Governing Law; Venue.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. The venue for any cause of 
action arising out of this Agreement shall be King County, Washington. 
 
 23. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the 
substantially defaulting party agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s 
reasonable expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, including but not limited 
to reasonable attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default 
or the determination of the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or 
in legal proceedings, or otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this 
paragraph shall include all litigation, arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy and judicial 
proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
 24. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the 
City and the Contractor contained hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
 25. Independent Counsel.  The Contractor acknowledges that the drafter of 
this Agreement is the City’s legal representative to whom the Contractor does not look 
to for any legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this transaction.  The 
Contractor further acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent 
legal counsel and has had an opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the 
Contractor acknowledges that it has consulted with independent legal counsel of its 
choice or has knowingly waived the right to do so.  There shall be no presumption of 
draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party hereto. 
 

26. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City 
and the Contractor represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to 
execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor or the City.  

37 of 98



 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on 

the day and year written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Derek Matheson 
Its: City Manager 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
_________________________   __________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
EVERSON’S ECONO-VAC, INC. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
By: ______________________________ 
Its: ______________________________ 
 
 
STATE 
 OF WASHINGTON ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________) 
 
On this day personally appeared before me ______________________, to me known 
to be the _________________________________________________________ of 
_____________________________________that executed the foregoing instrument, 
and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said 
corporation, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that 
he/she was authorized to execute said instrument and that the seal affixed, if any, is the 
corporate seal of said corporation. 
 

GIVEN my hand and official seal this ___ day of June, 2014. 
 

_____________________________________ 
_____________________________________ 
     (typed/printed name of notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington. 
My commission expires__________________ 

38 of 98



City of Covington 
Small Public Works Roster 

Stormwater System Cleaning 
EXHIBIT A 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
The Contractor agrees to provide storm sewer cleaning services during this contract as follows.  
See Covington maps and spreadsheet for more details (Exhibits B, and C) 
 
1. Year 1 

 
1.1. Clean all Catch Basins – Type I and II (approximately 975 Type I and 321 Type II).  

These quantities include structures in stormwater retention facilities mostly in 
Maintenance Zone 1.  All structures will be thoroughly vacuum cleaned and 
operational.  All storm filter structures (12) shall be thoroughly washed and vacuum 
cleaned.  All structures shall be inspected and a report shall be provided to the city. 
 

1.2. Filter Replacement (124/ea).  All structures with storm filters shall be 
vactored/cleaned to the point that there is no sediment or water left in the structure.  
All storm filter structures (12) shall be thoroughly washed and vacuum cleaned.  The 
cleaning of the structures in which the filters reside shall be incidental to the per-each 
price of Bid Item No. 3 Stormfilters. 

 
2. Year 2 

 
2.1. Clean all Catch Basins – Type I and II (approximately 830 Type I and 150 Type II). 

These quantities shall include structures in Stormwater Retention Facilities in 
Maintenance Zone 4. All structures will be thoroughly vacuum cleaned and 
operational.  All Pre-Settling Tanks (12) will be thoroughly washed and vacuum 
cleaned. 

 
3. Year 3 

 
3.1. Clean all Catch Basins – Type I and II (approximately 772 Type I and 270 Type II). 

These quantities shall include structures in Stormwater Retention Facilities in 
Maintenance Zones 2 and 3. All structures will be thoroughly vacuum cleaned and 
operational.   
 

3.2. Filter Replacement (124/ea).  All structures with storm filters shall be 
vactored/cleaned to the point that there is no sediment or water left in the structure.  
All storm filter structures (12) shall be thoroughly washed and vacuum cleaned.  The 
cleaning of the structures in which the filters reside shall be incidental to the per-each 
price of Bid Item No. 9 Stormfilters. 

 
4. Ad-Hoc Services. The Contractor shall perform pip jetting/cleaning and emergency call-out 

services upon the City’s request. 

39 of 98



5. Service Requirements. Contractor will perform the services pursuant to the following: 
 
5.1. Contractor will provide all necessary labor, material, and equipment to perform the 

work described herein.   
 
5.2. Cleaning catch basins will consist of vactoring sediment/debris and/or water from 

structure.  Cleaning of vault/pre-settling tanks will consist of washing of interior walls 
and vactoring of sediment/debris and/or water from structure.  It is the bidder’s 
responsibility to verify conditions prior to submitting a bid.  

 
5.3. Contractor will follow a systematic route for cleaning all Type I and Type II Catch 

Basins within the identified area, including those in stormwater retention facilities. 
 
5.4. Contractor will submit a spreadsheet that details CB#, structure type, date cleaned, 

condition, sediment load, evidence of illicit discharge, as well as comments indicating 
other conditions (e.g., issues, sediment in pipes, etc.).  The City will provide an Excel 
spreadsheet to the Contractor for this purpose.  This spreadsheet shall be submitted 
electronically along with the invoice for payment as well as copies of waste disposal 
receipts from an approved/permitted facility.  Payment will not be processed until all 
of these documents are submitted to the City. 

 
5.5. Contractor will assess the condition of Type I and Type II Catch Basins after cleaning 

and notify the City of Covington Maintenance Supervisor if any deficiencies or issues 
are found.  

 
5.6. Before leaving each catch basin location, contractor will clean all catch basin frames 

and grates/lids with high-pressure water. 
 

5.7. Contractor will dispose of the sediment in accordance with Washington State 
Department of Ecology requirements.  The Contractor shall obtain any necessary 
permits or licenses required to perform these services.  

 
5.8. The Contractor’s bid item prices shall include all disposal costs associated with 

cleaning of the storm facilities called out in this contract.  This includes any testing 
requirements, permitting, etc.  No separate payment will be made for disposal or 
testing of material.  Again, the Contractor will provide the City with copies of the 
waste disposal receipts from an approved disposal facility.  Prior to receiving payment 
for said work done.  For details on pre-settling tanks to be cleaned (see Exhibit C). 

 
5.9. Contractor will provide emergency response 24-hours a day upon request by the City.  

The Contractor must be able to meet a sixty (60) minute maximum response time in 
an emergency/after hours call out. 

 
5.10. Contractor shall be trained in illicit discharge detection and spill response, to include 

identification of hazardous materials in the drainage system, reporting of discharges 
found and proper cleanup and disposal of hazardous materials. 

 

40 of 98



5.11. Contractor will provide the City of Covington Maintenance Supervisor with work 
schedules prior to work commencing. 

 
5.12. The City of Covington shall be invoiced within thirty (30) days of completion of work. 

 
5.13. Stormwater Facility Map:  The City of Covington will provide a map showing the 

locations of the stormwater facilities to the bidder that is awarded this contract. 
 

5.14. Filter Replacement:  There are approximately 248 filters (124 in year one, 124 in year 
3) that will be replaced as part of this contract.  Catch Basins and Vaults containing 
filters shall be thoroughly cleaned.  Existing filter media will be vacuumed out, 
removed, and new filters installed by the Contractor.  All used filters shall be 
removed, placed on a pallet, shrink wrapped, and delivered undamaged to a location 
as directed by the city. This location shall be within ten (10) miles of the City of 
Covington.  New replacement filters will be provided to the Contractor by the City.  
The Contractor shall make arrangements to pick up new filters from a City facility.  
The Contractor will notify the City a minimum of forty-five (45) days prior to needing 
filters from the City.  The removed plastic filter shells shall be handled with care so 
that they are not damaged.  Any damage to new or used filters or City structures shall 
be repaired or replaced at the Contractor’s sole expense.  The price for Bid Item 3 and 
9 Storm filters (per each filter) shall include the removal and disposal of the used filter 
media, pick up and installation of the new City provided filter, cleaning of the inside of 
the filter vault, and delivery of the used, undamaged filter shell to the City.   

 

41 of 98



SR
 18

SE
 25

6T
H 

ST

RAMP

180TH AVE SE

SE
 27

2N
D 

ST

164TH AVE SE

SE WAX RD

156TH AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

SE
 25

1S
T S

T

156TH PL SE

170TH PL SE

160TH AVE SE

SE
 26

7T
H S

T

172ND AVE SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 27

0T
H 

PL173RD AVE SE

SE
 24

4T
H 

ST

161ST PL SE

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

SE
 26

6T
H 

PL

FR
ONT

AG
E R

D

172ND PL SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

170TH AVE SE

152ND AVE SE

SE
 24

6T
H 

ST

177TH PL SE

168TH PL SE

166TH PL SE

151ST PL SE

167TH PL SE

161ST AVE SE

169TH PL SE

175TH WAY SE

SE
 24

7T
H 

ST

SE
 25

7T
H 

ST

179TH PL SE

176TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

170
TH

 W
AY

 SE

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

171ST AVE SE

175TH AVE SE

168TH AVE SE

159TH AVE SE

153RD AVE SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

171ST PL SE

163RD AVE SE

SE
 24

9T
H 

PL

SE
 25

3R
D 

PL

SE
 25

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

8T
H 

PL

167TH AVE SE

178TH PL SE

150TH PL SE

SE
 25

4T
H 

PL

165TH PL SE

SE
 25

6T
H 

PL

175TH PL S
E

159
TH

 PL
 SE

181ST PL SE

162ND AVE SE

174TH PL SE

SE
 26

3R
D 

STSE
 25

7T
H 

PL

SE
 25

4T
H 

ST

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

157TH PL SE

160TH PL SE

155TH AVE SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

PL

SE 24
8TH

 PL

SE
 26

4T
H 

PL

SE
 26

5T
H 

PL

SE
 25

5T
H 

PL

SE
 25

1S
T P

L

158TH PL SESE
 25

5T
H 

ST

157TH AVE SE

162ND PL SE

SE
 24

2N
D 

ST

163RD PL SE

158TH AVE SE

180TH PL SE

60TH PL SE

SE 252ND CT

162ND AVE SE

165TH PL SE

SE
 26

4T
H S

T

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

1S
T C

T

168TH PL SE

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

176TH AVE SE

SE
 25

1S
T P

L

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H 

STSE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 25

3R
D 

PL

161ST AVE SE

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

156TH PL SE

SE
 25

4T
H  

S T

SR
 18

SE
 2

60
TH

 S
T

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

SE
 25

7T
H 

ST

SE
 27

1S
T S

T

166
TH AVE SE

157TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 2

65
TH

 S
T

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

163RD AVE SE

160 TH PL SE

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

RAMP

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

168TH PL SE

175TH AVE SE

SE
 25

8T
H 

ST

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL
SE

 26
3R

D 
PL

SE
 24

4T
H 

PL

SE
 26

1S
T 

PL

161ST PL SE

SE
 25

7T
H 

ST

SE
 25

4T
H 

PL

172ND AVE SE

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

168
TH

 PL
 SE

SE
 25

0T
H P

L

169TH AVE SE

SE
 2

50
TH

 C
T

174TH AVE SE

163RD PL SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

CT

164TH PL SE

SE
 2

65
TH

 C
T

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

163RD AVE SE

166TH PL SE

SE 2
63

RD
 P

L

17
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

166TH PL SE

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

SE
 26

1S
T 

P L

SE
 25

1S
T 

ST

167TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

167TH PL SE

SE
 26

6TH
 PL

180TH AVE SE

SE
 27

2N
D 

ST

168th PL SE

SE
 27

0T
H P

L

" )" )" )" )" )
" )

! ( ! (" )

! ( " )
! (

" )" )

" ) ! A " )

" )

" ) " ) " ) " ) " ) " )! A" ) " )
" ) " )
" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )" )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )
" )
" )

! (
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" ) " ) " ) " )" )
! (

! (
" )" )

! (
" )! (

" )
! (

" ) " )! (
! (" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (
" )
! ( ! ( " ) " )

" ) " ) " )
" ) " )

! ( " )

! ( "" )" )
" )" )

" ) " )
" )" )

! (" )
" )" )

" ) " )" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )" )

" ) " ) " )
" )

! ( " ) ! (

" )
! ( " )! (
! (
" ) ! (

" ) ! (
" ) " )

" )" )

! (" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )
" )

" ) " )
! (

" ) ! (

" )
" ) ! ( ! (
" )

" ) " )

" )! (
" )! (

! (" )
" ) ! (

" )
" )

! (

" ) " )
" )" )" ) " )
! A

" )

" )" )" )

" )! (" )

! (
! (

! (
" )

" )

! (
! (

! (
! (

! A! (

" )
" )

! ( ! (
" )" )
" )

" )
" ) " )

! (
" ) " )

" ) ! (
" )

! (
! (

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
! (

! (

! (

! (" )

" ) ! (

" )" )
! (

" )
" )" )

! A
! ( ! A

" )

" )
" )" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" ) " )
" )
" )

" )

! (

! (

! (
" )

" ) ! (

" )! (

! (" )
" ) ! (

" )! (
! A

! ( " )! (
" )

" )! (

" )" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) ! ( ! (
! ( ! (
" )

" ) " )
! (

" )
" )

" )
! (

" ) " )

" )
" ) " )" )

! (
" )

! ( ! (
" ) ! (

! (" )

! (" )

" ) ! (

! (! (
! (" )

" ) ! (
! (

" ) " )

" )
" )

! (" )
! (" )

" ) ! (

" )! (" )" )" )" )

" )" )
" ) " )

" )" )" )

" )

" ) " ) ! ( " )

" )
" )

" )" )
" )

" )" )
" )

! A

" )

! A" )

! A

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )! (
" )

" )
" )

" )
" ) " ) ! (

" )
" )

" ) " ) ! ( " )
! (

! (" ) " )

" )
" )! (

" )" )
" )

" ) " )

" )

" ) " )
" )! A ! A

" ) " )
" ) " )
! (

" ) " )
! (! (" )

! (" )

" )

! A
" )

! (

! ( " ) " )

" )" ) " )
" )

" )

! A

" )
" ) " )
" )

" )
" )

" )! A

" ) ! ( " ) ! A

" ) ! (
! (

" ) " )

! (

! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

" )
" )" )
" )

" )
! (

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" ) " )
" )

! A " ) " )! (

! (
! ( ! (

! (

! (" )
! A

! (

" )
" )" )

" )! ( ! (
! (

! ( " )
! (! (! (

" )
" )" )

" )
" ) " ) " )

" ) " )
" ) " ) " )

" )! (" )

" ) " )
" )

! (

" )
" )" )

" )

" )
" )
" )

" )
" )" )" )! (! (

" )" )
" )" )
" )

" ) " )" )
" ) " )

! (
! (

! (" )! (
! (" )

! (

! ( " )
" )

" )" )

! (
" )! (
" )

! (" )
" )

" )

" )
! (

! (
! ( ! ( ! (

" )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )

" )

! (
! A

! A
! A " )

" )" )" )
" )" )
" )" )! (
" )

! (" )
" )" )

! (" )
! (

! (
! (

" ) " )

" ) " )

" )

" ) " )

" ) " )
! ( ! (

" )
" )

" )" )
" ) " )

! (

" ) " )
" )

" )" )
" ) " )! (! (

! (

! ( " )
" )

" )

" ) " )
" )

! (" )! (

! (

! ( ! (
! (

! (

! (
" ) " )
" )

" ) " ) ! (

" )! (

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) " )
! ( " )

! ( " )" )

" )" )
(

" )! (

" )" )

" ) " )

" )
" ) ! ( " )! (

" ) " )
! (

! (

" ) " )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )
" )
! (

" )

! (

! (" )" )

! ( " )
! (! A ! (

" ) " )
" )

" ) " ) " )

! (! (" )
" )! (

" ) " )
" )

" )

" ) " )

" ) " )

! (
! (" ) " ) " )

! (
" )

" ) " )" )

" ) " )

" )" )

! (
" )

! ( " )
" )

" ) " )

! A

! (! (

" )" )
" )
! (! (

" )! (! (

" )
" )

! (! (
" ) " )

! (! (

" ) " )
" )
" )

" )" )
" )! (

" )" )

" )
" )
! (" )
! (! (

" )" )" )
" )

! (
" )
" )! (

" ) " )

" )
" )

" )

" ) " )
! (

" ) ! (

! (! (

" )" )
! (

" )" )

" )" )

" ) " )
" )

" ) " )! (
! (

" ) " )

" )" )! (
! (

! (" ) " ) " )
! (

! (

" )

" ) " ) " )
" ) " ) ! A

" ) " )
" )

" )" )

" )" )

! (

" ) " )" )
! (" ) " )
" ) " )
" )
! ( " )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )
" )" )

" )

" )" )

" )" ) " )
" )

! (" )

! ( ! A

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )" )" )" )

! (

" )" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )" )" ) " )

! (! (
! (

! (

" )" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

! (" )

! A! (
" )

" )

" )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )

" )
" ) " ) ! (

" ) " )

! (
" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
" ) " )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )" )" )
" )" )
" )" )

" )
" )

" )
" )
! (

" ) ! (
" ) " )

" )! (
" )

" ) ! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) ! ( " )" )

! (
! (

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )! (

" )
" )" )
" )" )

! (! (! (! (

" ) " )
" ) ! (
" )

! (! A

" )
" )" )" )
" )

! A
" )" )
" )

" )
" )" )

" )
" )

! (

" ) " ) ! A
" )

" )
" ) " )
" ) " )

" )" )
" )

" )
! A
! (! A

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! ( " )
" )

" )

" )" )
" )

" ) " ) " )

( (
(

(

(
(

(

" )
" )(
( " )

(
((

" )
" )" )" )

(
(

(
(

(

(
(

(

((
(

" )" )" )" )
" ) " )

" )" )
" )" )

" )
(

" )
" )

" )

! (
! (

" )
" )

" )
" )

" ) " )
" )

" )" )

(

(
(

(

(

(
(

(
(

(

(

" ) ! (
" ) " )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

(
(

" )" )" )" )" )

(
(

(

( (

(

(
(

((

( (
(

(

(

((

((((

(

(

(

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) " )
(

(

(
( (

((

(

" )" )

((

" ) " )
" ) " )

(

( (

" ) " )

(

(

" )" )

(

" )
" ) " ) " )

" )

" )
" )

(

( ( (
(

(
(

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" )

" )

(

(
(

(

(((
(

(

(

(

( (

" )
! (

" )
" )

(
((

(
(

(
((((

(

(
((

(

(

(

" )" ) " )" ) " )" )

" )" ) ! ( ! ( ! ( ! ( " )

" )
! (

(
(

(

(

" )

" )
(

" )" )
" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) ! (
" )! (

! (

" )
! (

" )
" ) " )

! (
! ( ! (" ) " ) ! ( " )" ) ! (

" )" )
" )

" )" )

" )" )

! (
! (

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (
" )" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

! (
" )" )

" )" )
" )
! (

" )
! (

" )" ) " )
" )

! ( ! (
" )

! (" )

" )" )
" )

" )" )
" )

" )" )

! (
! (

" )
! (! (

" )" )
! (

" )
! (! (

! (

! (

" ) " )
" )" ) " )

" )

! (
" )" )

" )" )

" )
! (

" )
! (! (! (! (! (
" )

! (

" )

! (
" )

" )

" )
" )" )

! (
! (

! (" )
" ) ! (

" )
" )

" )! (
" )" )" )" )

" )
" )

(
(

! (
! (

(

(
( (

(

(
(

(

(

" )" ) " ) " )" )

" )" ) " )
" ) " )
" ) " )" ) ! (" )

" ) " )
" )
" )

! ( ! (
" )

" )" )
(

(

((
(

(

( (
(

#*#*
" )
" )

" )" )" )! (" )

" )" )" )

" )" )
! (! (

" )
! ( " ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
" ) " )" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" )" )
" )

" )
" )
! (

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )! (
! ( " )

" )! A
" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )" )

(

(

(

(

(

(

((
(

((

(

(
(

(
(

( (
(

(
(

( ( ( (

((

(

(
(
(

(

" ) " )
" )

" )" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" )" )

" ) " )
" )

" )

" )
" )

(

(

(

" )" )
" )

" )
" )

(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

" )

(

! (

" )" ) " )" )

(

(

(
(

(((

(

(

(
(

(
(

(

(

(
(

" )
" )
" )

" )" )! (

(

! (

(

(

(

(

" )" )

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(( (

(

(

( (

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

((
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(

((

(

(

((

(

(

(

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

(
(

(

(
(((

(

( ( ( (

(

( ( (
((

( ( ( (
((

((

(
((

(
( (( (

(
((

((

(

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

" )
! (" )

" )
! (" )

! (
" )

! (
! (" )

" ) " )
" )" ) " )
" ) " )
" ) " )" ) " )

" )

" )" )" )
" )

" )" )

(
(

( (
(

(
(

(
(

! (
( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

" )

( (

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(( (

(
(

(

(

" )
" )

" )
" )" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )" ) ! (

" )

(
( (

" ) ! (! ( ! (

(

(

(

((( (

(

(

(

(

(
(

( (
(

(
(

(

(

(

! A ! (

! (" )! (
" )" )

! (! (! (

! ( ! (
! (" )

! (
! (

" )
" )

! (

! (
! (

! A
" )

! (! (

" )" )
! (

" )
" )

" )! (

" ) ! (

" )! (

" ) " )" )

" )" )

! (! (! A! ( ! (

! (
! ( ! ( ! (

" ) " )

" )
" ) " )

! (" )
" )

" ) " )
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " ) " )

" )
" )

" ) " )" )

" )" )

" )

" )" )
" )

" )" )! (

" )
" )

" )" )
" )" )

! (

( (

(
( (

(

((

( ( (
(

(

(

(

(
(

! (

((

(

" )" )
! (

" )

( (
(

(
(

(

( (

(

(
(

(

" )" )
" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

! A
" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )
" ) " )
" )

" ) ! (
! (
! (! ( " )

! (
" )

" )
! (

" )
! (

" ) " )

" )! (
" )" )

! (

" )" )

! ( ! (
! (

! (! (

! A! (

! (

" )

! (! (! (

""! (

! (! (

" "
" )" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

! (
! A

(

" ) " )
" )

" )

! (

(

(
(

(
(

( (

(

(

(
((

(
(

(

(
((

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

" ) " )! ( ! ( ! ( " ) ! ( " ) ! (! ( ! ( ! (" )! (" )! (" )" )" )" )" )" )" )

! (

(
(

( (

(

! A ! A ! (" )" )" )" )" )" )

" )

(

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )" ) " )

" " " )! ( ! ( " )! (! (

(
(

(
(((

" )! (" )" )" )" )

(
(

" )
" )

" )" )
" ) " ) " ) " )! (

! A" ) " )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" ) " )

" )" )

! (

(
(

((
( (

(
(

(
((
(

((
((
( (

((
(
((

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

" )

" )

" )

(

" )" ) " ) " )

((
(

( (
(

( (

" )
" )

! (

" )

" )

! (

! (
! (

" )

! (

" )" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

( ( ( ( (((

(

" )

" )

" )

" ) " ) " ) " )" ) " ) " )
(

( (

(

(

" )

! (

! (
! (

! (

! (

" )" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

! A
" )

! (

" )" )
" )
" )
" )" ) " )

! (
! A ! (

! A
! (

! (" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

! A

" )

! A! A

! ( ! (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

" )

" )
" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

(

(
(

(

((

(

(

! (

(

(

" )

! (

"! (

" ) ! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) ! (
" )

! (! (
! ( " )

" )

" )
! (
" )

! (
" )

" )

" )

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

" )" )
" )

" )

! (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(
(" )

((

(
(

(

(

(

( (

(

" )

(

(

((

(

(

( (
(

(
(

(
(

((((
! ( ! (

! (! (! ( ! (! (! (! ( ! (

" )
" )

(
(((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
((

(
(

(

(

(((
(

(

(

(

(
(

(
(

(
(

((

(
((

((
(

(

(
((

(

( ( (

(

(
( (

(

(
( (
(

(

(
(

(

(

(
(

(

! (

(

(
(

(
( (

(

" ) ! ( ! (

(
(
(((

(

(

((
( (

(

" )

" )" )" )" )
" )" ) ! A

((
( (

((
(

(
(

#*#*#*#*
#*#*#*#*

" )

" )
" )

! (

" )

! A

" )

(

(

(

" )! (

" )
(

(

(
(

" )
" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (
! ( ! (

" ) " )! (! (
! (! (

" )

! (
! A

" )

" )

" )

! (
! (

(

" )
(

(

" )

" ) " )

" )

" )" )

! (

! A

! (

" )

" )

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )

! A

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

(

(

" )

! (

(

! (
" )

(

.
1 

in
ch

 =
 1

,2
50

 fe
et

Ci
ty 

of 
Co

vin
gto

n 
Dr

ain
ag

e M
ap

C
re

at
ed

 B
y:

 S
ha

w
n 

Bu
ck

 0
6/

13
/2

01
1

Zo
ne

 1

Zo
ne

 2

Zo
ne

 3

Zo
ne

 4

! A
C

on
tro

l S
tru

ct
ur

e

" )
Ty

pe
 1

, P
ub

lic

"
S

to
rm

fil
te

r

! (
Ty

pe
 2

, P
ub

lic

Zo
ne

 1

EXHIBIT B

42 of 98



SR
 18

SE
 25

6T
H 

ST

180TH AVE SE

164TH AVE SE

SE
 24

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

SE
 25

1S
T S

T

170TH PL SE

SE
 26

7T
H S

T

197TH PL SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

TIM
BERLANE WAY SE

191ST PL SE

194TH AVE SE

200TH AVE SE

173RD AVE SE

199TH PL SE

SE
 24

4T
H 

ST

161ST PL SE

193RD PL SE

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

SE
 26

6T
H 

PL

SE
 24

4T
H 

PL

FR
ONT

AG
E R

D

172ND PL SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

170TH AVE SE

SE
 24

6T
H 

ST

177TH PL SE

168TH PL SE

166TH PL SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

SE
 26

0T
H S

T

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

185TH PL SE

186TH PL SE

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

184TH AVE SE

167TH PL SE

161ST AVE SE

183RD AVE SE

175TH WAY SE

SE
 24

7T
H 

ST

199TH AVE SE

SE
 25

7T
H 

ST
179TH PL SE

176TH AVE SE

170
TH

 W
AY

 SE

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

171ST AVE SE

175TH AVE SE

168TH AVE SE

SE 184TH PL

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

183RD PL SE

171ST PL SE

195TH PL SE

192ND PL SE

163RD AVE SE

SE
 24

9T
H 

PL

184TH PL SE

188TH AVE SE

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

187TH AVE SE

192ND AVE SE

SE
 25

8T
H 

ST

196TH AVE SE

167TH AVE SE

178TH PL SE

SE
 25

4T
H 

PL

SE
 25

6T
H 

PL

189
TH AVE SE

175TH PL S
E

159
TH

 PL
 SE

181ST PL SE

162ND AVE SE

197TH AVE SE

185
TH

 LOOP SE

SE
 26

3R
D 

STSE
 25

7T
H 

PL

196TH PL SE

SE
 25

4T
H 

ST

SE
 24

5T
H 

PL

SE
 24

6T
H 

PL

190TH AVE SE

SE
 24

7T
H 

PL

SE
 TI

MBE
RL

AN
E B

LV
D

SE
 24

1S
T P

L

SE
 26

1S
T C

T

193RD AVE SE

SE
 24

3R
D 

ST

190TH PL SE

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

160TH PL SE

SE 24
8TH

 PL

SE
 26

5T
H 

PL

SE
 25

5T
H 

PL

SE
 25

1S
T P

L

183RD CT SE

189TH PL SE

187TH PL SE

SE 258TH PL

186
TH CT SE

198TH AVE SE

162ND PL SE

SE
 24

2N
D 

ST

SE
 24

1S
T S

T

163RD PL SE

180TH PL SE

187TH CT SE

198TH CT SE

SE
 2

44
TH

 L
N

60TH PL SE

SE 252ND CT

SE
 24

5T
H 

CT

162ND AVE SE

165TH PL SE

SE
 26

4T
H S

T

SE
 W

AX
 RD

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

191ST PL SE

190TH PL SE

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

1S
T C

T

168TH PL SE

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

176TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

201ST AVE SE

SE
 25

1S
T P

L

184TH PL SE

195TH PL SE

SE
 25

8T
H S

T

SE
 26

6T
H S

T

SE
 26

4T
H 

STSE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 25

3R
D 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST
SE

 26
4T

H S
T

161ST AVE SE

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST
SE

 26
2N

D 
ST

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

188TH AVE SE

SE
 26

7T
H 

ST

SE
 25

4 T
H 

ST

SR
 18

184TH AVE SE

SE
 2

60
TH

 S
T

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST
SE

 26
6T

H P
L

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

SE
 25

7T
H 

ST

166
TH AVE SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D S

T

185TH PL SE

SE
 2

65
TH

 S
T

189TH AVE SE

SE
 25

8T
H S

T

SE
 25

9T
H PL

195TH PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

196TH AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T P

L

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

188TH AVE SE

163RD AVE SE

160 TH PL SE

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

SE
 26

7T
H 

ST

183RD AVE SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

168TH PL SE

175TH AVE SE

SE
 25

8T
H 

ST

193RD PL SE

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

SE
 24

4T
H 

PL

SE
 24

3R
D 

ST

186
TH PL SE

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

161ST PL SE

185TH PL SE

183RD AVE SE

172ND AVE SE

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

192ND PL SE

SE 2
50T

H P
L

169TH AVE SE

189TH PL SE

SE
 2

50
TH

 C
T

174TH AVE SE

163RD PL SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

CT

SE
 25

9T
H 

CT

164TH PL SE

19
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE
 2

65
TH

 C
T

SE
 2 63R

D ST

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

163RD AVE SE

166TH PL SE

SE 2
63

RD
 PL

17
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

166TH PL SE

185TH AVE SE

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

SE
 26

1S
T 

P L

SE
 25

1S
T 

ST

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE
 26

4T
H PL

167TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

4T
H P

L

200TH AVE SE

167TH PL SE

SE
 26

6TH
 PL

180TH AVE SE

" ) " ) " ) " ) " ) " )! A" ) " )
" ) " )
" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " ) " )

" )" )
" )

! (
" )

" ) " )" )

" )" )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )
" )
" )

" )
" )

! (
! (

! (
" )

" )
" )
" )

! (" )
! ( ! (

! (" )" )
! ( " )! (

! ( " )
! (
! (! (

" )

! (
! (

" )

! A! (
! (

! (

! (" )

" )" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )
" )

! ( " )
! (

! ( " )

" )" )

" )" )
! (

" )" )
! (
! A ! (

" )
! ( ! ( ! (

! ( ! A " )

" )" )

" )
" )
" )

! A

" )
" )

" )" )" ) " )" )
! (
! (

" ) " )
! (

" )
" )! (! (" )" )

" )
" )! ( " ) ! (

" )! (

! A

" )
! (" )

" )

" )" )

" )" )

! (
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (
" )
! ( ! ( " ) " )

" ) " ) " )
" ) " )

! ( " )
! ( "" )" )

" )" )

" ) " )
" )" )

! (" )
" )" )

" ) " )" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )" )

" ) " ) " )
" )

! ( " ) ! (

" )
! ( " )! (
! (
" ) ! (

" ) ! (
" ) " )

" )" )

! (" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )
" )

" ) " )
! (

" ) ! (

" )
" ) ! ( ! (
" )

" ) " )

! (
! (

! (

" )" )
! ( ! (" ) ! (" ) " )

" )! (" )
! (

" )! (
" )! (

! (" )
" ) ! (

" )
" )

! (

" ) " )
" )" )" ) " )
! A

" )

" )" )" )

" )! (" )

! (
! (

! (
" )

" )
" )

" )

! (
! (

! (
! (

! A! (

" )
" )

! ( ! (
" )" )
" )

" )
" ) " )

! (
" ) " )

" ) ! (
" )

! (
! (

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
! (

! (

! (

! (" )

" ) ! (

" )" )
! (

" )
" )" )

! A
! ( ! A

" )

" )
" )" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" ) " )
" )
" )

" )

! (

! (

! (
" )

" ) ! (

" )! (

! (" )
" ) ! (

" )! (
! A

! ( " )! (
" )

" )! (

" )" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) ! ( ! (
! ( ! (
" )

" ) " )
! (

" )
" )

" )
! (

" ) " )

" )
" ) " )
" )

! (
" )

! ( ! (
" ) ! (

! (" )

! (" )

" ) ! (

! (! (
! (" )

" ) ! (
! (

" ) " )

" )
" )

! (" )
! (" )

" ) ! (

" )! (" )" )" )" )

" )" )
" ) " )

" )" )" )

" )

" ) " ) ! ( " )

! A

" )

" )

" )! (
" )" )

" )
" )

! (" ) " )
" )

! (

" ) " ) " ) " )
" )" )

! (
" )

" )
" )" )

" )
" ) " )

" ) " )
! (
! (

! (
! (

! (
! (

! (

" ) " )" )

" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" ) " )

" )
" ) " )! (

" )" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )" )

" )
" )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )
! A

! A

" ) " )
" ) " ) " )

" )" )

" ) " )
" )

" )

! (" )" )
" )" )

" )" )

" )

" )
! (

! (

" ) " ) " ) " )" )

" )
" )

" )" )
" )

! A
" )" )

! (
" )
" )" )

" )
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )" )
" )
" )

" )

" )

" )" )

" )
" )

! (

" )" )" )
! A

" )" ) " )
" )

" )

! (

" )! (
" )" )

" )
" )

! (

! (

" )

" )

! A

" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" )" )

" )

" )
" )" )

! (

! (
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )

" )" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
" )
! (

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )" )
" )

! ( ! (
! (

" )
! (

" ) " )
" ) " )

" )
" )
" ) " )

" ) " )

" )
" )" )
" )

" )
" )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (
" )

" )" )

" )" )
" )" )
" )

" )

" )
! (

" )

" )

! A

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
! (
" )

! (
! A

! ( " )" )

" )" )

" )
! (

" )
" )" )

" ) " )

" )" ) " )" )

" )

" )" ) ! (

" )" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" )" )
! (

" ) " )
" )" )
! ( " )

" )" )
" ) " ) ! (

" ) " )

" )" )

" )

! (

" ) " )

" )

" ) " )

" )

" ) " )

" )" )

" ) " )

" )" )

! (

" ) " )" ) " )

" )" )

" ) " )

! A

" )" )

! (

" )" )

" ) " )! (
" )" )

" ) " )

" ) " )" )" )

! (
" )

" ) " ) " )! (
" )

! (
" )

" )
" )

! (
" )

" )

" )

" )

" )" )
! (

" )

" )

! (

" ) " )

" ) " ) " )" )

" ) " ) ! (
" ) ! (

! (

" )

" )" )
" )" )

! (

! (
" ) " )

! ( " )" ) " )" )

" )
! A
! (" )" )

" )
! A! (

! (" )" )

" )" )

" )" )
! (

" )" ) " )

" ) " )

! (

" )" )

" )" )

! (

" )" )
! (

! (

" )" )
! (

" )" )

" )
" )
" )

" )" ) ! (
" ) " )

! (
" ) " )

" )" )

! A
" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) " )
" )" )

" )

" )

! A

! A

" )

" )
" )" )

" )! (
! (

! (

! (

! (

" )

" )
" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )
! (
" )

" )

" )

" )! (

" )
! (

! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
! (

! (
" )

! A " )! (! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (" )" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

" )! (
! A! (
! (

" )
" )" )" )

" )
" ) " )
" )

" ) " )
" )

" )" ) " )

" ) " )

! A

" )

! ( ! (! (

! (

! (
! A

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )" ) " )

" )

" )

" ) " )! (
" ) " )

" )" )
" )

! A

" )" )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )! (
" )

" )

! A" )

! A

! ( " )
(

! (

" )

" )

" )

! A" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )! (
" )

" )
" )

" )
" ) " ) ! (

" )
" )

" ) " ) ! ( " )
! (

! (" ) " )

" )

" )! (
" )" )

" )

" ) " )

" )

" ) " )
" )! A ! A

" ) " )
" ) " )
! (

" ) " )
! (! (" )

! (" )

" )

! A" ) " )" )

" )
" )" )

" )! ( ! (
! (

! ( " )
! (! (! (

" )
" )" )

" )
" ) " ) " )

" ) " )
" ) " ) " )

" )! (" )

" ) " )
" )

! (

" )
" )" )

" )

" )
" )
" )

" )
" )" )" )! (! (

" )" )
" )" )
" )

" ) " )" )
" ) " )

! (
! (

! (" )! (
! (" )

! (

! (" )

" )
" )" )

! (
" )! (
" )

! (" )
" )

" )

" )
! (

! (
! ( ! ( ! (

" )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )

" )

! (
! A

! A
! A" )

" )" )" )
" )" )
" )" )! (
" )

! (" )
" )" )

! (" )
! (

! (
! (

" ) " )

" ) " )

" )

" ) " )

" ) " )
! ( ! (

" )
" )

" )" )
" ) " )

! (

" ) " )
" )

" )" )
" ) " )! (! (

! (

! ( " )
" )

" )

" ) " )
" )

! (" )! (

! (

! ( ! (
! (

! (

! (
" ) " )
" )

" ) " ) ! (

" )! (

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) " )
! ( " )

! ( " )" )

" )" )
(

" )! (

" )" )

" ) " )

" )
" ) ! ( " )! (

" ) " )
! (

! (

" ) " )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )
" )
! (

" )

! (

! (" )" )

! ( " )
! (! A ! (

" ) " )
" )

" ) " ) " )

! (! (" )
" )! (

" ) " )
" )

" )

" ) " )

" ) " )

! (
! (" ) " ) " )

! (
" )

" ) " )" )

" ) " )

" )" )

" )
" )

! (! (
" )

" ) " )
" )
" )

" )" )
" )! (

" )" )

" )
" )! (" )
! (! (

" )" )" )
" )

! (
" )
" )! (

" ) " )

" )
" )

" )

" ) " )
! (

" ) ! (

! (! (

" )" )
! (

" )" )

" )" )

" ) " )
" )

" ) " )! (
! (

" ) " )

" )" )! (
! (

! (" ) " ) " )
! (

! (

" )

" ) " ) " )
" ) " ) ! A

" ) " )
" )

" )" )

" ) " )

! (

" )

" )
" )
! (

" ) ! (
" ) " )

" )! (
" )

" ) ! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) ! ( " )" )

! (
! (

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )! (

" )
" )" )
" )" )

! (! (! (! (

" )
" )" )" )
" )

! A
" )" )
" )

" )
" )" )

" )
" )

" ) " ) ! A
" )

" )
" )

" )" )
" )

" )
! A

( (
(

(

(
(

(

" )
" )(

( " )

(
((

! (

" )

" )
" )" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )" )

(
(

(

((

((((

(

(

" )" ) " )" ) " )" )

" )" ) ! ( ! ( ! ( ! ( " )

" )
! (

(
(

(

(

" )

" )
(

" ) " )
! (

! ( ! ( " ) " ) ! ( " )" ) ! (
" )" )

" )

" )" )
" )" )

! (

" )" ) " )" )

! ( ! (
" )

! (" )

" )" )
" )

" )" )
" )

" )" )

! (
! (

" )
! (! (

" )" )
! (

" )
! (! (

! (

! (

" ) " )
" )" ) " )

" )

! (
" )" )

" )" )

" )
! (

" )
! (! (! (! (! (
" )

! (

" )

! (
" )

" )

" )
" )" )

! (
! (

! (" )
" ) ! (

" )
" )

" )! (
" )" )" )" )

" )
" )

(
(

! (
! (

(

(
( (
(

(
(

(

(

" )" ) " ) " )" )

" )" ) " )
" ) " )
" ) " )" ) ! (" )

" ) " )
" )
" )

! ( ! (
" )

" )" )
(

(

((
(

(

( (
(

#*#*
" )
" )

" )" )" )! (" )

" )" )" )

" )" )
! (! (

" )
! ( " ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
" ) " )" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" )" )
" )

" )
" )
! (

" )

" )
" )

" )

(

(

(
(

(
(

( (
(

(
(

(

(

(
(
(

(

" ) " )
" )

" )
" )

(

(

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

" )
! (" )

" )
! (" )

! (
" )

! (
! (" )

" ) " )
" )" ) " )
" ) " )
" ) " )" ) " )

" )

" )" )" )
" )

" )" )

( (

(
(

( (
(

(
(

(

(

(

! ( ! (
! (" )

! (

! (

" )
" )

! (

! (
! (

! A
" )

! (! (

" )" )
! (

" )
" )

" )! (

" ) ! (

" )! (

" ) " )" )

" )" )

! (! (! A! ( ! (

! (
! ( ! ( ! (

" )
" ) " )

! (" )
" )

" ) " )
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " ) " )

" )
" )

" ) " )" )

" )" )

" )

" )" )
" )

" )" )! (

" )
" )

" )" )
" )" )

! (

( (

(
( (

(

((

( ( (
(

(

(

(

(
(

! (

((

(

" )" )
! (

" )

" )
" )

(
(

" )" )

! A

" )" )" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )" )" )" )

" )
" )

" )

(

(

(

(
" ) " )
" )
" )

" )

" )
(

(

" ) " )

! A" )" )" )" )

" )

" ) ! A

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )" )
" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )" )

! A! (

! (

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

! (
! A

(

" ) " )
" )

" )

! (

(

(
(

(
(

( (

(

(

(
((

(
(

(

(
((

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

" ) " )! ( ! ( ! ( " ) ! ( " ) ! (! ( ! ( ! (" )! (" )! (" )" )" )" )" )" )" )

! (

(
(

( (

(

! A ! A ! (" )" )" )" )" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

(

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )" ) " )
" )" )

" )" )
" ) " ) " ) " )! (

! A" ) " )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" ) " )

" )" )

! (

(
(

((
( (

(
(

(
((
(

((
((
( (

((
(
((

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

! (

! (
! (

" )" )

" )

! (

" )

( ( ( ( (((

(

" )

" )

" )

" ) " ) " ) " )" ) " ) " )
(

( (

(

(

" )

! (

! (
! (

! (

" )" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

! A
" )

" )" )
" )
" )
" )" )

" )

! (
! A ! (

! A
! (

! (" )

" )

" )
! ( ! (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

" )

" )

(

(
(

(
(

(
(
((

(
(

(

(

(((
(

(
((
( (

(

! (

" )

! A

" )

" )

(

(

(

" )! (

" )
" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

! (
! ( ! (

" ) " )! (! (
! (! (

" )

" )

" )

(

(

! (! (
! (

! (

! (! (! (
" )

! (
! (

(

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

(
(

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" )

(

(

" )

" )

! (
" )

(

.
1 

in
ch

 =
 1

,2
50

 fe
et

Ci
ty 

of 
Co

vin
gto

n 
Dr

ain
ag

e M
ap

C
re

at
ed

 B
y:

 S
ha

w
n 

Bu
ck

 0
6/

13
/2

01
1

Zo
ne

 1

Zo
ne

 2

Zo
ne

 3

Zo
ne

 4

! A
C

on
tro

l S
tru

ct
ur

e

" )
Ty

pe
 1

, P
ub

lic

"
S

to
rm

fil
te

r

! (
Ty

pe
 2

, P
ub

lic

Zo
ne

 2

EXHIBIT B

43 of 98



SR
 18

RAMP

SE
 27

2N
D 

STSE WAX RD

156TH AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

156TH PL SE

COVINGTON WAY SE

160TH AVE SE

SE
 27

9T
H P

L

SE
 26

7T
H S

T

172ND AVE SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

TIM
BERLANE WAY SE

191ST PL SE

194TH AVE SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

PL173RD AVE SE

193RD PL SE

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

SE
 26

6T
H 

PL

SE
 27

7T
H 

PL

FR
ONT

AG
E R

D

172ND PL SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

170TH AVE SE

177TH PL SE

168TH PL SE

166TH PL SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

185TH PL SE

186TH PL SE

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

167TH PL SE

161ST AVE SE

169TH PL SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

ST

179TH PL SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

171ST AVE SE

175TH AVE SE

166TH AVE SE

168TH AVE SE

159TH AVE SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

171ST PL SE

192ND PL SE

163RD AVE SE

184TH PL SE

188TH AVE SE

187TH AVE SE

SE
 25

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

8T
H 

PL

178TH PL SE

165TH PL SE

189
TH AVE SE

175TH PL S
E

159
TH

 PL
 SE

162ND AVE SE

174TH PL SE

186TH AVE SE

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

185TH AVE SE

SE
 25

7T
H 

PL

190TH AVE SE

SE
 TI

MBE
RL

AN
E B

LV
D

SE
 26

1S
T C

T

SE
 26

9T
H 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H 

PL

SE
 28

0T
H 

PL

SE
 27

5T
H 

ST

SE
 26

5T
H 

PL

189TH PL SE

SE
 27

8T
H 

PL

158TH PL SE

187TH PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T C

T

186
TH CT SE

158TH AVE SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

CT

193RD CT SE

187TH CT SE

SE
 27

1S
T P

L

SE
 27

7T
H 

ST

162ND AVE SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

PL

165TH PL SE

SE
 26

4T
H S

T

180TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

191ST PL SE

190TH PL SE

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

1S
T C

T
SE

 26
1S

T S
T

176TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

184TH PL SE

SE
 25

8T
H S

T

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

189TH AVE SE

192ND AVE SE

SE
 26

6T
H S

T

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

194TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

188TH AVE SE

SE
 26

9T
H S

T

SE
 26

7T
H 

ST

SR
 18

184TH AVE SE

SE
 2

60
TH

 S
T

SE
 27

1 ST
 CT

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

SE
 27

1S
T S

T

157TH AVE SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

SE
 27

9T
H  

PL

SE
 26

3R
D S

T

183RD PL SE

SE
 2

65
TH

 S
T

189TH AVE SE

SE
 25

8T
H S

T

SE
 25

9T
H PL

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

1S
T P

L

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

163RD AVE SE

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

7T
H 

ST

183RD AVE SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

RAMP

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

168TH AVE SE

168TH PL SE

175TH AVE SE

SE
 25

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL
SE

 26
3R

D 
PL

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

SE
 26

1S
T 

PL

160TH AVE SE

186
TH PL SE

161ST PL SE

172ND AVE SE

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

168
TH

 PL
 SE

189TH PL SE

174TH AVE SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

CT

164TH PL SE

SE
 2

65
TH

 C
T

SE
 2 63R

D ST

166TH PL SE

SE
 2 6

9T
H 

ST

SE 2
63

RD
 P

L

17
4T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

166TH PL SE

185TH AVE SE
SE

 26
6T

H 
ST

SE
 26

1S
T 

P L

SE
 26

4T
H PL

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

167TH PL SE

SE
 26

6TH
 PL

180TH AVE SE

SE WAX RD

SE
 27

2N
D 

ST

168th PL SE

165
th PL S

E

SE
 27

0T
H P

L

! (
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" ) " ) " ) " )" )
! (

! (
" )" )

! (
" )! (

" )
! (

" ) " )! (
! (" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (
" )
! ( ! ( " ) " )

" ) " ) " )
" ) " )

! ( " )
! ( "" )" )

" )" )

" ) " )
" )" )

! (" )
" )" )

" ) " )" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )" )

" ) " ) " )
" )

! ( " ) ! (

" )
! ( " )! (
! (
" ) ! (

" ) ! (
" ) " )

" )" )

! (" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )
" )

" ) " )
! (

" ) ! (

" )
" ) ! ( ! (
" )

" ) " )

! (
! (

! (
! (

! A! (
! (

" )

" )" )
! (

" )
" )" )

! A
! ( ! A

" )

" )
" )" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" ) " )
" )
" )

" )

! (

! (

! (
" )

" ) ! (

" )! (

! (" )
" ) ! (

" )! (
! A

! ( " )! (
" )

" )! (

" )" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (

! (
" )

" ) " )
! (

" )
! (

" )
" )
" )

! (
" )

! ( ! (
" ) ! (

! (" )

! (" )

" ) ! (

! (! (
! (" )

" ) ! (
! (

" ) " )

" )
" )

! (" )
! (" )

" ) ! (

" )! (" )" )

" )" )
" ) " )

" )" )" )

" )

" ) " ) ! ( " )

" )

" ) " )
! (
! (

! (
! (

! (
! (

! (

" ) " )" )

" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" ) " )

" )
" ) " )! (

" )" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )" )

" )
" )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )! (! A! A
! (
" )! ( ! (
" )

" )
" )

" )
" ) ! (

! (

" )
! ( " ) " )

" )
" ) " )
" )

" )
! A

! A

" ) " )
" ) " ) " )

" )" )

" ) " )
" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

! A

" )

" )" )

" ) " )

" )

" )" )

" )
" )" )

! (

! (
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
" )" )

" )

" )" )

" )
" )
! (

! (

" )
! A

" )" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )
" )" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" ) " )

! (
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
! (
" )

" )" )
" )" )

" ) " )

" )" ) " )" )

" )

" )" ) ! (

" )" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" )" )
! (

" ) " )
" )" )
! ( " )

" )" )
" ) " ) ! (

" )" )" ) " )

" )" )

" ) " )

! A

" )" )

! (

" )" )

" ) " )! (
" )" )

" ) " )

" ) " )" )" )

! (
" )

" ) " ) " )! (
" )

! (
" )

" )
" )

! (
" )

" ) " )

" ) " ) " )" )

" ) " ) ! (
" ) ! (

! (

" )

" )" )
" )" )

! (

! (
" ) " )

! ( " )" ) " )" )

" )
! A
! (" )" )

" )
! A! (

! (" )" )

" )" )

" )" )
! (

" )" ) " )

" ) " )

! (

" )" )

" )" )

! (

" )" )
! (

! (

" )" )
! (

" )" )

" )
" )
" )

" )" ) ! (
" ) " )

! (
" ) " )

" )" )

! A
" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) " )
" )" )

" )

" )
! (
" )

" )

" )

" )! (

" )
! (

! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
! (

! (
" )

! A " )! (! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (" )" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )" ) " )

" )

" )

" ) " )! (
" ) " )

" )" )
" )

! A

" )" )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )! (
" )

" )

! A" )

! A

" )

! ( " )
(

! (

" )

" )

" )

! A" )

" ) " )
" )! A ! A

" ) " )
" ) " )
! (

" ) " )
! (! (" )

! (" )

" )

! A
" )

! (

! ( " ) " )

" )" ) " )
" )

" )

! A

" )
" ) " )
" )

" )
" )

" )! A
" ) ! ( " ) ! A

" ) ! (
! (

" ) " )

! (

! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

" )
" )" )
" )

" )
! (

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

! (
! ( ! (

! (

! (" )
! A

! (

" )
" )" )

" )! ( ! (
! (

! ( " )
! (! (! (

" )
" )" )

" )
" ) " ) " )

" ) " )
" ) " ) " )

" )! (" )

" ) " )
" )

! (

" )
" )" )

" )

" )
" )
" )

" )
" )" )" )! (! (

" )" )
" )" ) " )" )

" ) " )
! (

! (
! (" )! (

! (" )

! (

! ( " )
" )

" )" )

! (
! A

! (
" )

! ( " )
" )

" ) " )

! A

! (! (

" )" )
" )
! (! (

" )! (! (

" )
" )

! (! (
" ) " )

! (! (

" ) " )
" )
" )

" )" )
" )! (

" )" )

" )
" )! (" )
! (! (

" )" )" )
" )

! (
" )
" )! (

" ) " )

" )
" )

" )

" ) " )
! (

" ) ! (

! (! (

" )" )
! (

" )" )

" )" )

" ) " )
" )

" ) " )! (
! (

" ) " )

" )" )! (
! (

! (" ) " ) " )
! (

! (

" )

" ) " ) " )
" ) " ) ! A

" ) " )
" )

" )" )

" ) " )

! (

" )

! (" )

! A" )
" ) " ) ! (

" ) " )

! (
" )
" )

" )

" )
" )
! (

" ) ! (
" ) " )

" )! (
" )

" ) ! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) ! ( " )" )

! (
! (

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )! (

" )
" )" )
" )" )

! (! (! (! (

" ) " )
" ) ! (
" )

! (! A

" )
" )" )" )
" )

! A
" )" )
" )

" )
" )" )

" )
" )

! (

" ) " ) ! A
" )

" )
" ) " )
" ) " )

" )" )
" )

" )
! A
! (! A

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! ( " )
" )

" )

" )" )
" )

" ) " ) " )

" ) " )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

(

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )" )

" )" )
(

(

(

(
(

(

(

" )
" )

" )

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

" )
" )" )" )

" )

" )
(

(
(

(

(
(

(

(
((

(

(
(

(

(
(

( ( (

((
(

" )" )" )" )
" ) " )

" )" )
" )" )

" )
(

" )
" )

" )

! (
! (

" )
" )

" )
" )

" ) " )
" )

" )" )

(

(
(

(

(

(
(

(
(

(

(

" ) ! (
" ) " )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

(
(

" )" )" )" )" )

(
(

(

( (

(

(
(

((

( (
(

(

(

((

((((

(

(

(

" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) " )
" ) " )

(

(

(
( (

((

(

" )" )

((

" ) " )
" ) " )

(

( (

" ) " )

(

(

" )" )

(

" )
" ) " ) " )

" )

" )
" )

(

( ( (
(

(
(

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" )

" )

(

(
(

(

(((
(

(

(

(

( (

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (
" )

" )

(
((

(
(

(
((((

(

(
(

( (

(

(

(

(
(

(
! ( ! ( ! ( ! (

(

! ( ! (

( (

! ( " )

(((
( ( ((

(

(((

( ((

" )

" )

" )

" )" )

" )

! ( ! (
" )

! (" )

" )" )
" )

" )" )
" )

" )" )

! (
! (

" )
! (

(
(

(
(

" )" ) " ) " )" )

" )" ) " )
" ) " )
" ) " )" ) ! (" )

" ) " )
" )
" )

" )" )
! (! (

" )
! ( " ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
" ) " )" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" )" )
" )

" )
" )
! (

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )! (
! ( " )

" )! A
" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )" )

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )" )" )

! (

((
(

((

(

(
(

(
(

( (
(

(
(

( ( ( (

((

(

(
(
(

(

" )
" )

" ) " )
" )

" )" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" )" )

" ) " )
" )

" )

" )
" )

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

! (

" )

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

" )

" )" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
! (

" )
! (

(
! (

! (
! (

" )

" )" )

" )" )

" )
" )

(

(

(

(

(

" )

" )
! A

(

(

(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

" )

(

! (

" )" ) " )" )

(

(

(
(

(((

(
(

(

(
(

(
(

(

! (
(

(

" ) " )

(
(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(
(

" )
" )
" )

" )" )! (

(

! (

( (

(

(

(

" )" )

(

(

(

((

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(( (

(

(

( (

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

((
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(

((

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

((

(
(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(
(((

(

( ( ( (

(

( ((
((

( ( ( (
((

((

(

(

(
(

( ( (

( ( (

(

((
(

( (( (

(
((

(
(

(
(

((

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

((

" )
! (" )

" )
! (" )

! (
" )

! (
! (" )

" ) " )
" )" ) " )
" ) " )
" ) " )" ) " )

" )

" )" )" )
" )

" )" )

(

(

(

(

(

(

( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

( (

(

(
(

(((
((((
(

(
(

(

( (
(

(
(

(
( ( ((

! (
( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

" )

( (

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(( (

(
(

(

(

" )
" )

" )
" )" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )" ) ! (

" )

(
( (

" ) ! (! ( ! (

(

(

(

((( (

(

(

(

(

(
(

! A ! (

! (" )! (
" )" )

! (! (! (

" )" )
! (

" )
" )

" )! (

" ) ! (

" )! (

" ) " )" )

" )" )

! (
! ( ! ( ! (

( (

(
( (

(

((

( ( (
(

(

(

(

(
(

! (

((

(

" )" )
! (

" )

( (
(

(
(

(

( (

(

(
(

(

(
(

" )" )" )

" ) " )
" )" )

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )" )" )" )" )" )
" )

" )

" )

(

(

(

(
" ) " )
" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )
(

(

! (

" ) " )

! A" )" )" )" )

" )

" ) ! A

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

#*#*

#*

" )

! (

#*

#*

! (

" )

" )" )
" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

((

(

(

(

" )" ) " )

" )( " )

(

(
(

(

! A
" )

" )" )
" )" )

! ( ! (
! (

! (

! A! (

! (

" )
" )

! (! (! (

""! (

! (! (

" "
" )" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )" ) " )

" " " )! ( ! ( " )! (! (

(
(

(
(((

" )! (" )" )" )" )

(
(

" )" )

" )" )
" ) " ) " ) " )! (

! A" ) " )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" ) " )

" )" )

! (

(
(

((
( (

(
(

(
((
(
(

(
(

(

(

(

" )

" )

" )

(

" )" ) " ) " )

" )

! (

" )

( ( ( ( (((

(

! (

" )" )
" )

! A
" )

! (

" )" )
" )
" )
" )" )

" )

! (
! A ! (

! A
! (

! (" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

! A

" )

! A! A

! ( ! (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

" )

" )
" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

(

(
(

" )

! (

" ) ! A

" )
" )
" ) " )

! A
(

(

" )

! (

! (

(

! (
" ) " )

(

((

(

(

! (

(

(

" )

! (

! (

! (

" )
! (

! (

! (

" )

! (! (

"! (

" ) ! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) ! (
" )

! (! (
! ( " )

" )

" )
! (
" )

! (
" )

" )

" )

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

" )" )
" )

" )

! (

" )" )

" )

(

(

(

" )
" )

(

(

((

(
(

(

! (

! ( " )

(
(
(

" )

((

( (

(
(

(

(

((

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(
(" )

((

(

(
(

(

! (
! (

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

" )

(

( (

(

" )

(

(

((

(

(

" )

! (

! (

( (
(

(
(

(
(

((((
! ( ! (

! (! (! ( ! (! (! (! ( ! (

" )
" )

(
(((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
((

(
(

(

(

(((
(

(

(

(

(
(

(
(

(

(

((

(
((

((
(

(

(
((

(

( ( (

(

(
( (

(

(
( (
(

(

(
(

(

(

(
(

(

! (

(

(
(

(
( (

(

" ) ! ( ! (

(
(
(((

(
(

((
( (

(

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )" )" )" )
" )" ) ! A

((
( (

((
(

(
(

(
(

#*#*#*#*
#*#*#*#*

" )

" )
" )

! A

" )

(

(

" )
(

(

(
(

" )
" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

! (
! ( ! (

" ) " )! (! (
! (! (

" )

" )

(

" )

" )

! (! (
! (

! (

! (! (! (
" )

" )

! (
! (

" )
(

" )

(

" ) " )

" )

" )" )

" )

" )

" )

! A

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

! A

" )

(

! (

" )

(

! (
" )

(

.
1 

in
ch

 =
 1

,2
50

 fe
et

Ci
ty 

of 
Co

vin
gto

n 
Dr

ain
ag

e M
ap

C
re

at
ed

 B
y:

 S
ha

w
n 

Bu
ck

 0
6/

13
/2

01
1

Zo
ne

 1

Zo
ne

 2

Zo
ne

 3

Zo
ne

 4

! A
C

on
tro

l S
tru

ct
ur

e

" )
Ty

pe
 1

, P
ub

lic

"
S

to
rm

fil
te

r

! (
Ty

pe
 2

, P
ub

lic

Zo
ne

 3

EXHIBIT B

44 of 98



SE
 25

6T
H 

ST

180TH AVE SE

SE
 27

2N
D 

STSE WAX RD

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

204TH AVE SE
SE

 27
9T

H P
L

197TH PL SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

TIM
BERLANE WAY SE

191ST PL SE

194TH AVE SE

200TH AVE SE

199TH PL SE

193RD PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T S

T

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

SE
 26

6T
H 

PL

SE
 27

7T
H 

PL

FR
ONT

AG
E R

D

210TH AVE SE

177TH PL SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

SE
 26

0T
H S

T

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

185TH PL SE

186TH PL SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

201ST AVE SE

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

175TH WAY SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

ST

199TH AVE SE

179TH PL SE

176TH AVE SE

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

175TH AVE SE

SE 184TH PL

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

183RD PL SE

195TH PL SE

192ND PL SE

184TH PL SE

188TH AVE SE

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

187TH AVE SE

SE 263RD PL

SE
 26

8T
H 

PL

178TH PL SE

203RD AVE SE

211TH AVE SE

189
TH AVE SE

175TH PL
 SE

208TH AVE SE

197TH AVE SE

186TH AVE SE

185TH AVE SE

212TH AVE SE

196TH PL SE

190TH AVE SE

SE
 TI

MBE
RL

AN
E B

LV
D

SE
 26

1S
T C

T

202ND AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T P

L

206TH AVE SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D 

CT

SE
 28

0T
H 

PL

SE
 26

5T
H 

PL

189TH PL SE

187TH PL SE

201ST PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T C

T

SE 258TH PL

186
TH CT SE

198TH AVE SE

209TH AVE SE

201ST CT SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

CT

SE
 27

0T
H 

CT

193RD CT SE

187TH CT SE

SE
 27

1S
T P

L
198TH CT SE

201ST PL SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H S

T

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

191ST PL SE

190TH PL SE

176TH PL SE176TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

201ST AVE SE

209TH AVE SE

184TH PL SE

195TH PL SE

SE
 25

8T
H S

T

189TH AVE SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

192ND AVE SE

SE
 27

1S
T S

T

SE
 26

6T
H S

T

194TH AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST
SE

 26
4T

H S
T

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

188TH AVE SE

SE
 26

9T
H S

T

SE
 26

7T
H 

ST

SR
 18

184TH AVE SE

SE
 27

1 ST
 CT

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST
SE

 26
6T

H P
L

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

SE
 27

0T
H 

ST

SE
 25

7T
H 

ST

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

211TH AVE SE

SE
 26

3R
D S

T

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

183RD PL SE

189TH AVE SE

SE 258TH ST

SE
 25

8T
H S

T

SE
 25

9T
H PL

195TH PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

206TH AVE SE

196TH AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

SE
 26

1S
T P

L

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

176TH PL SE

SE
 26

7T
H 

ST

183RD AVE SE

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL
SE

 26
8T

H 
ST

175TH AVE SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

186
TH PL SE

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

SE
 26

8T
H S

T

SE
 27

0T
H 

ST

203RD AVE SE

200TH AVE SE

SE
 26

5T
H 

PL

189TH PL SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

CT

SE
 26

0T
H 

CT

19
8T

H 
PL

 S
E

SE
 2 63R

D ST

SE
 2 6

9T
H 

ST

SE 2
63

RD
 P

L

185TH AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T C

T

SE TIMBERLANE BLVD

SE
 26

4T
H PL

SE
 26

4T
H P

L

200TH AVE SE

180TH AVE SE

SE
 27

0T
H P

L

! (
! (

! (

! (
! (

! (
! (

! A! (

" )
" )

! ( ! (
" )" )
" )

" )
" ) " )

! (
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (
! (

! (

! (" )

" )
! (

" )" )
! (

" )
" )" )

! A
! ( ! A

! (

" )

" )

" ) ! (

" )! (

! (" )
" ) ! (

" )! (

! ( " )! (
" )

" )! (

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) ! ( ! (
! ( ! (
" )

" ) " )
! (

" )
" )

" )
! (

" ) " )

" )" ) " )
" )

! (
" )

! ( ! (
" ) ! (

! (" )

! (" )

" ) ! (

! (! (
! (" )

" ) ! (
! (

" ) " )

" )" )

! (" )
! (" )

" ) ! (

" )! (" )" )" )" )

" )" )
" ) " )

" )" )" )

" )

" ) " ) ! ( " )

" )

" )

" )! (
" )" )

! A

! ( ! (
" )

" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" ) " )
" )

" )
" )" )

! (" )
" )

! (" ) " )
" )

! (

" )
" ) " ) " )

" )" )
! (

" )
" ) " )

" )
" )" )

" )
" ) " )

" ) " )
! (
! (

! (
! (

! (
! (

! (

" ) " )" )

" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" ) " )

" )
" ) " )! (

" )" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )" )

" )
" )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )! (! A

! A
! (
" )! ( ! (" )" )

" )

" )
" ) ! (

! (

" )
! ( " ) " )

" )
" ) " )
" )

" )
! A

! A

" ) " )
" ) " ) " )

" )" )

" ) " )
" )

" )

! (" )" )
" )" )

! A

" )" )

" )
" )

" )" )
" )" )

" ) " )

" )

" )" )

" )

" )
! (

! (

" ) " ) " ) " )" )

" )
" )

" )" )
" )

! A
" )" )
! (
" )
" )" )

" )
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )" )
" )
" )

" )

" )

" )" )

" )" )

! (

" )" ) " )
! A

" )" ) " )
" )

" )

! (

" )! (
" )" )

" )
" )

! (

! (

" )

" )

! A

" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" )" )

" ) " )

" )

" )" )

" )
" )" )

! (

! (
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )

" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
" )
! (

! (

" )
! A

" )" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )
" )" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" ) " )

! (
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (

" )

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )
" )" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )" )
" )

! ( ! (
! (

" )
! (

" ) " )
" ) " )

" )
" )
" ) " )

" ) " )

" )
" )" )

" )

" )
" )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" ) " )

" )

" )

" )
" )

! (
" )

" )" )

" )" )
" )" )
" )

! (

" )
" )

" )
! (

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )

! A

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
! (
" )

! (
! A

! ( " )" )

" )" )

" )
! (

" )
" )" )

" ) " )

" )" ) " )" )

" )

" )" ) ! (

" ) " )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" )" )
! (

" ) " )
" )" )
! ( " )

" )" )
" ) " ) ! (

" ) " )

" )" )

" )

! (

" ) " )

" )

" ) " )

" )

" ) " )

" )" )

" ) " )

" )" )

! (

" )" )" ) " )

" )" )

" ) " )

! A

" )" )

! (

" )" )

" ) " )! (
" )" )

" ) " )

" ) " )" )" )

! (
" )

" ) " ) " )! (
" )

! (
" )

" )
" )

! (
" )

" )
" )! (

" )
" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )" )

" )" )

" )

! (
" )

" )

! (

" )

" )
! (

! (" )
" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )" ) " )" )

" )" ) ! (
" ) ! (

! (

" )

" )" )
" )" )

! (

! (
" ) " )

! ( " )" ) " )" )

" )
! A
! (" )" )

" )
! A! (

! (" ) " )

" )" )

" )" )
! (

" )" ) " )

" ) " )

! (

" )" )

" )" )

! (

" )" )
! (

! (

" )" )
! (

" )" )

" )
" )
" )

" )" ) ! (
" ) " )

! (
" ) " )

" )" )

! A
" ) " )

" ) " )

" ) " )
" )" )

" )

" )

! A

! A

" )

" )
" )" )

" )! (
! (

! (

! (

! (

" )

" )
" ) " )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )
! (
" )

" )

" )

" )! (

" )
! (

! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )
! (

! (
" )

! A " )! (! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (" )" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" ) " )

" )" )
" )" )

" )" )! A

" )

" )! (
! A! (
! (

" )
! (
! ( ! (

! (

" )
" )

" )" )
" )

" ) " )
" )

" )
" ) " ) ! ( " )

" )" )
" )

" )

" )" )
" )

" )" ) " )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )" )

" )
" ) " )
" )

" ) " )
" )

" )" )! (" )
" )" ) " )

" ) " )

! A

" )

! ( ! (! (

" )

! (

! (
! A

! (

" )
" )

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )" ) " )

" )

" )

" ) " )! (
" ) " )

" )" )
" )

! A

" )" )
" ) " )

" )
" )

" )! (
" )

" )

! A" )

! A

" )

" )" )
" )" )

! A" )

! ( " )
(

! (

" )

" )

" )

! A" )

" )

" ) " ) ! A
" )

" )
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )" )
" )

" )
! A
! (! A

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

! ( " )
" )

" )

" )" )
" )

" ) " ) " )

" )
" )" )" )

" ) (
" )

(

( ( (
(

(

(

( (

" )
" )

" )
" )

! (
" )

" )

(
((

(
(

(
((((

(

(
(

( (

(

(

(

(
(

(
! ( ! ( ! ( ! (

(

! ( ! (

( (

! ( " )

(((
( ( ((

(

(((

( ((

" )

! A
" ) " ) #*

" ) " )
#*#*

" )

! (

( (
(

(

" )

" )" ) " )" ) " )" )

" )" ) ! ( ! ( ! ( ! ( " )

" )
! (

(
(

(

(

" )

" )

(

(

((
(

(

( (
(

#*#*
" )
" )

" )" )" )! (" ) " )" )
! (! (

" )
! ( " ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )
" )

" )
" ) " )

" )
" ) " )" )

" )" )
" )" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )" )
! (

" )

" )
" )

" )

((
(( (

(
(

(

( ( ( (

#*#*
#* #*

#*

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" ) " )
" )

" )" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" )" )

" ) " )
" )

" )

" )
" )

(

(

(

(

(
(

(((

(
(

(

(
(

(
(

(

! (
(

(

" ) " )

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(( (

(

( ( (

(
(

(

(
(

(

(

((
(

(
(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(
(

(

(
(((

(

( ( ( (

( ( ( (((
((

(

(
((

((

(

( ((
( ( ( (

(
(

(

(
(

(

" )

" ) " ) " ) " )
" ) " )

(
(

" )
" )

" )
(

( ((" )" )
" )

" )
" )" ) ! (

( ( (

" )

! A
" )

" )

! (" ) " )

(((

(

(

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" ) " )

(
(

" )" )

! A

" )" )" )

" ) " )
" ) " )

" ) " )

" )

" )
" )

" )" )" )" )" )" )
" )

" )

" )

(

(

(

(
" ) " )
" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

" )

(

(

! (

" ) " )

! A" )" )" )" )

" )

" ) ! A

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

" )

#*

#*

! (

" )

" )

" )
" )

((

(

(

(

" )" ) " )

" )(

(
(

(
(

( (

(

(

(

((

(
" )

(

(
(

(

( ( (

(
(

(

" )

" )

" )" )
! A

" )
" )" )

" )" )

" )
" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

! (
! A

(

" )

(

(
(

(
(

( (

(

(

( ((

(
(

(

(
((

(

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

" ) " )! ( ! ( ! ( " ) ! ( " ) ! (! ( ! ( ! (" )! (" )! (" )" )" )" )" )" )" )

! (

(

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )" ) " )

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" )" ) " )

! (
" )

( ( ( ( (((

(

! A
" )

! A

" )" )
" )
" )
" )" )

" )

! (
! A ! (

! A
! (

! (" )

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

! A

" )

! A! A

! ( ! (
" )

" )

" ) ! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

! (
" ) ! (

" )
" )

" )

" )
" )

" ) ! (
" )

! (! (
! ( " )

" )

" )
! (
" )

! (
" )

" )

" )

(
(

" )

(

(

(((

(

(
(

(
(

((((

(

" )

" )

" )

" )
" )

" )

" )

! (

" )

" )

" )

(

" )

! (! (
! (

! (

! (! (! (
" )

" )
" ) " )

! (
! (

" )

" )

(

(

" )

! (

! A

" )

(

! (

" )

" )

(

! (
" )

(

.
1 

in
ch

 =
 1

,2
50

 fe
et

Ci
ty 

of 
Co

vin
gto

n 
Dr

ain
ag

e M
ap

C
re

at
ed

 B
y:

 S
ha

w
n 

Bu
ck

 0
6/

13
/2

01
1

Zo
ne

 1

Zo
ne

 2

Zo
ne

 3

Zo
ne

 4

! A
C

on
tro

l S
tru

ct
ur

e

" )
Ty

pe
 1

, P
ub

lic

"
S

to
rm

fil
te

r

! (
Ty

pe
 2

, P
ub

lic

Zo
ne

 4

EXHIBIT B

45 of 98



EXHIBIT C

Presettling Tank(s) Outfall

Stormfilter Facilities Facility ID AKA Project Presettling Structure Type / Size Filters Structure 2014 2015 2016

174th PL SE & SE 270th PL DI31093 Vet Clinic LID 99‐01 (2)x50'‐60" Vault 8'x16' 20 70'‐60" infiltration Filters/Vault Tanks Filters/Vault

174th PL SE & SE 272nd ST DI31072 Jiffy Lube LID 99‐01 (2)x50'‐60" Vault 8'x16' 20 70'‐60" infiltration Filters/Vault Tanks Filters/Vault

172nd AVE SE & SE 272nd ST DI31071 Walgreens LID 99‐01 (1) 25'‐60" Vault 6'x12' 5 35'‐48" infiltration Filters/Vault Tanks Filters/Vault

SE 256th ST & 168th AVE SE DV11216 N/A 1034 (2)x80'‐48"/(2)x130'‐48" Vault 8'x16' 31 Direct outfall Filters/Vault Tanks Filters/Vault

SE 272nd st & WAX RD  DV31100 N/A 1039 (1) 8'x14' HDS Vault  Vault 8'x16' 18 Direct outfall Filters/Vault HDS Vault Filters/Vault

172nd AVE SE & SE 260st ST DV21210 Wingfield frontage Wingfield N/A Manhole 48" 3 35'‐36" infiltration Filters/MH N/A Filters/MH

SE 261st ST & 172nd AVE SE DV21210 Wingfield frontage Wingfield N/A Manhole 72" 9 70'‐36" infiltration Filters/MH N/A Filters/MH

159th AVE SE & SE 265th CT DV11143 end on 159th Covington Plat N/A CB (2) Cartridges 2 46'‐48" infiltration Filters/CB N/A Filters/CB

SE 265th CT & 159th AVE SE   DV11143 end on 159th Covington Plat N/A CB (3) Cartridges 3 46'‐48" infiltration Filters/CB N/A Filters/CB

h h d h l / ( ) d ' " f l l / / l /

Stormfilter

CITY OF COVINGTON
Structure/Stormfilter Inventory

CONTRACT YEAR
Treatment Train Presettling 

Tank(s) Stormfilter Outfall

SE 265th CT & 159th AVE SE   DV11143 end on 159th Covington Plat N/A CB (3) Cartridges 3 52'‐48" infiltration Filters/CB N/A Filters/CB

SE 268th ST Aqua Vista Aqua Vista (1) 60" manhole 72" Manhole 5 Outfall to Pipe Lake N/A MH N/A

SE 268th PL Autumn Bay Autumn Bay (1) 60" manhole 72" Manhole 5 Outfall to Pipe Lake N/A MH N/A

Total 124

46 of 98



Consent Agenda Item C-6 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 10, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE PROPOSED SIX-YEAR 2015 – 

2020 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP). 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Resolution 
 
PREPARED BY:  Robert Lindskov, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
The city is required by RCW 35.77.010 to annually prepare and adopt a comprehensive 
transportation program for the ensuing six calendar years and to forward a copy of that Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) to the Washington State Secretary of Transportation 
by July 31st.  The TIP represents the first six years of the 20-year transportation (street) capital 
improvement program.  The projects contained in the proposed City of Covington Six-Year TIP 
2015 – 2020 are consistent with the transportation projects identified in the Capital Facilities 
Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan adopted December 16, 2003.  
 
A Public Hearing for the proposed 2015 – 2020 Six-Year TIP was held before the City Council 
on May 27, 2014. No comments were received during the Public Hearing. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Direct Staff to modify the proposed 2015 – 2020 Six-Year TIP. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The fiscal impact of each proposed project is indicated in the draft Six-Year TIP 2015 – 2020.  
The specific revenue source(s) for the city portion of the funds for each project is determined 
each year during the budget process.  Additional revenues are needed to fund these projects.  
Possible sources are grants, appropriations and traffic impact fees. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance    X   Resolution            Motion        Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember _______________ 
seconds, to pass a Resolution adopting the City of Covington Six-Year (2015 - 
2020) Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

47 of 98



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING A SIX-
YEAR (2015 – 2020) TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM AND DIRECTING THE SAME TO BE FILED 
WITH THE STATE SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION 
AND TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT BOARD 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 35.77 and 47.26 RCW, the City 

Council of the City of Covington has previously adopted a Comprehensive Plan including a 

Capital Facilities Element, and thereafter periodically modified said Capital Improvement 

Program (the “Program”) by resolution; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the work accomplished under the Program, 

determined current and future City street needs, and based upon these findings has prepared a 

Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program for the ensuing six (6) calendar years; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the Six-Year Transportation Improvement 

Program on May 27, 2014; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Program Adopted.  The Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 

for the City of Covington, as revised and extended for the ensuing six (6) calendar years (2015 – 

2020, inclusive), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 

reference, which Program sets forth the project location, type of improvement and the estimated 

cost thereof, is hereby adopted and approved. 

Section 2. Filing of Program.  Pursuant to Chapter 35.77 RCW, the City Clerk is 

hereby authorized and directed to file a copy of this resolution forthwith, together with the 

Exhibit attached hereto, with the Secretary of Transportation and a copy with the Transportation 

Improvement Board for the State of Washington. 

ATTACHMENT 1

48 of 98



Section 3.   Effective Date.  In order to coincide with the State Environmental 

Policy Act (SEPA) timeline, the Plan identified as Exhibit “A” and adopted in Section 1 

shall take effect on July 4, 2014. 

 

PASSED in open and regular session on this 10th day of June, 2014. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Mayor Margaret Harto 
Attested: 
 
___________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 

49 of 98



EXHIBIT A

50 of 98



Capital Improvement Project Priorities 
 
 
 
1. CIP 1127 SE 272nd Street between Jenkins Creek and 185th Place SE  

 
This project is to widen and reconstruct a portion of 
SE 272nd Street between Jenkins Creek and 185th 
Place SE.  This project will include the crossing of 
Jenkins Creek with a new structure for the stream, 
widening the street from 2-lanes to 5-lanes 
including curb and gutter, 8’ sidewalks, access 
control features, landscaping and provisions for u-
turns.   

 
 
 

 
2. CIP 1014 Jenkins Creek Park between SE 267th Place and SE 268th Street 

 
This is a non-motorized transportation project that 
will construct a multiuse trail between SE 267th 
Place and SE 268th Street through Jenkins Creek 
Park.  This project will replace the pedestrian bridge 
that was washed out from a storm and once again 
connect neighborhoods to Jenkins Creek Elementary 
as well as provide ADA and bike access to and from 
the downtown core.     
 
 
 
 
 

3. CIP 1201 204th Avenue SE between SE 272nd Street SE and SE 256th Street 
 
The new roadway connection will provide overall 
benefits to the citywide street system by providing 
more options for vehicles traveling between SE 
272nd Street and SR 18.  This collector arterial will 
be widened to two 12-foot lanes, one 14-foot turn 
lane/median, and two 5-foot wide bike lanes.  Each 
side of the roadway will also include a curb, a 
gutter, a 5-foot landscape buffer, and a 5-foot 
sidewalk. 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

51 of 98



4. CIP 1086 164th Avenue SE between SE 264th Street and vicinity SE 269th Street 
 
This project will install a 5’ separated walkway on 
the east side of 164th Avenue SE between SE 264th 
Street and just south of SE 269th Street.  This project 
will also install a drainage swale with underdrainage 
to convey and treat surface water. Once completed, 
this will provide a continuous separated 
walkway/sidewalk from Kentwood High School to 
the Covington Library.   
 

 
 
 
 
5. CIP 1128 SE 272nd Street between 185th Place SE and 192nd Avenue SE 

 
This project is to widen and reconstruct a portion of 
SE 272nd Street between 185th Place SE and 192nd 
Avenue SE.  This project will widen the street from 
2-lanes to 5-lanes including curb and gutter, 8’ 
sidewalks, access control features, landscaping and 
provisions for u-turns.   

 
 
 
 
 
6. CIP 1063 SE 272nd Street between 160th Avenue SE and 164th Avenue SE 

 
This project provides for design and future 
construction of additional turn lanes, channelization, 
and signal modifications.  Widening SE 272nd Street 
will require modifications to the existing stream 
crossing at the intersection.  Project length is 800 
feet.  Construct street section consistent with the 
existing SR 516 section including illumination, 
landscaping, 10’ wide sidewalks with street trees in 
planting wells. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

52 of 98



 
 
7. CIP 1056 SE 256th Street between 172nd Avenue SE and 180th Avenue SE 

CIP 1149 180th Avenue SE between SE 256th Street and SE Wax Road (N)  
 
Portions of these two larger CIP projects (see map) 
are being combined to provide improvements 
adjacent to the new fire station at SE 256th Street 
and 180th Avenue SE.  The improvements will 
include widening the north side of SE 256th Street 
from 180th Avenue SE to 176th Avenue SE to match 
the section at 168th Avenue SE.  The frontage along 
180th Avenue SE will be widened from the 
intersection to Crestwood Elementary School. 
 

 
 
8. Town Center 1     SE 276th Street between 168th Place SE and SE Wax Road 
 

This is a new route; new alignment roadway that 
will support the Town Center vision and meet the 
Town Center Design Guidelines.  The schedule of 
these projects will be primarily driven by 
development and may be constructed in portions.     
 
 

 
 
 
 
9. Town Center 2   171st Avenue SE (Main Street) between SE 275th Street and SE 276th Street 

 
This is a new route; new alignment roadway that 
will support the Town Center vision and meet the 
Town Center Design Guidelines.  The schedule of 
these projects will be primarily driven by 
development and may be constructed in portions.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53 of 98



 
10. CIP 1124 185th Place SE Extension - Wax Road/180th Ave SE to SE 272nd Street 

 
This project connects SE Wax Road/180th Avenue 
SE to SE 272nd Street via a new route and alignment 
designated as 185th Place SE.  The street section 
will consist of a 3-lane urban arterial standard with 
curb, gutter and 8’ sidewalks, landscaping strips, 
illumination and stormwater infrastructure.  The 
project will also include crossing Jenkins Creek.  
The actual route and alignment will be determined 
during design.    

 
 

 
COMPLETED 2014 
 
 

1. CIP 1028   SE 240th Street, 196th Ave SE and SE Wax Road Overlay  
 
This project will overlay SE 240th Street from 180th 
Ave SE to 196th Avenue SE, 196th Avenue SE from 
SE 240th Street to SE Wax Road and SE Wax Road 
from 193rd Avenue SE to 196th Avenue SE. This 
project is fully funded and scheduled to be 
completed in the late summer of 2013.    
 
 
 
 

2. CIP 1029  Citywide Intersection Safety Project – 10 Locations  
 
This project is part of the WSDOT City Safety 
Program that is focused on intersection safety. The 
project will do safety improvements to 10 locations 
throughout the city. These improvements vary at 
each location but may include rechannelization, 
adding warning beacons and pavement markings; 
improving sight distance, and crosswalks; 
upgrading signs, sidewalks and ADA access points. 
The intersections are SE 272nd Street / 168th Place 
SE, SE 272nd Street / 172nd Place SE, 168th Place 
SE /169th Place SE, SE 270th Place / 174th Avenue 
SE, SE 256th Street / 180th Avenue SE, SE 267th Street / 192nd Avenue SE, SE 261st 
Street / 180th Avenue SE, SE 268th Street / 164th Avenue SE, SE Wax Road / 180th Ave 
SE and SE 256th / 170th Ave. SE. This project is fully funded and scheduled to be 
completed in 2014.   

 
54 of 98



 
3. CIP 1057 156th Avenue SE between SE 272nd Street and SE 261st Place 

 
This project will design and construct the pavement 
rehabilitation of 156th Avenue SE in the vicinity of 
SE 272nd Street and the vicinity of SE 261st Place.  
There is no widening associated with this project.  
The project will consist of pulverizing the existing 
roadway and overlaying with new asphalt.  ADA 
ramps will be upgraded as warranted. 
 
 
 
 

55 of 98



SR
 18

SE
 27

2N
D 

ST

SE
 25

6T
H 

ST

RAMP

180TH AVE SE

164TH AVE SE

SE WAX RD

SE
 24

0T
H 

ST

156TH AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

204TH AVE SE

SE
 25

1S
T S

T

168TH PL SE

156TH PL SE

COVINGTON WAY SE

170TH PL SE

160TH AVE SE

173RD AVE SE

SE
 27

9T
H P

L

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 26

7T
H S

T

197TH PL SE

172ND AVE SE
SE

 26
2N

D 
PL

199TH PL SE

TIMBERLANE WAY SE191ST PL SE

194TH AVE SE

200TH AVE SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

PL

SE
 24

4T
H 

ST

161ST PL SE

193RD PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T S

T

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

SE
 26

6T
H 

PL

SE
 24

4T
H 

PL

SE
 27

7T
H 

PL

FR
ONT

AG
E R

D

210TH AVE SE

172ND PL SE
SE

 26
2N

D 
ST

170TH AVE SE

152ND AVE SE

SE
 24

6T
H 

ST

169TH PL SE

196TH AVE SE

177TH PL SE

166TH PL SE

SE
 25

9T
H S

T

SE
 25

4T
H 

PL

SE
 26

0T
H S

T

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

185TH PL SE186TH PL SE

151ST PL SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

184TH AVE SE

167TH PL SE

161ST AVE SE

183RD AVE SE

175TH WAY SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

ST

SE
 24

7T
H 

ST

199TH AVE SE

179TH PL SE

176TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

170
TH

 W
AY

 SE

176TH PL SE SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

175TH AVE SE

159TH AVE SE

153RD AVE SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

183RD PL SE

171ST PL SE

195TH PL SE

192ND PL SE

SE
 24

9T
H 

PL

171ST AVE SE

SE
 25

3R
D 

PL

188TH AVE SE

SE
 26

6T
H S

T

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

192ND AVE SE

203RD AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

PL

195TH CT SE

178TH PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T P

L

150TH PL SE

211TH AVE SE

165TH PL SE

SE
 25

6T
H 

PL

189
TH AVE SE

SE 258TH ST

159
TH PL SE

186TH AVE SE

208TH AVE SE

185TH AVE SE

162ND AVE SE

184TH PL SE

174TH PL SE

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

168TH AVE SE

212TH AVE SE

196TH PL SE

SE
 25

4T
H 

ST

SE
 24

5T
H 

PL

SE
 24

6T
H 

PL

SE
 24

7T
H 

PL

SE
 TI

MBE
RL

AN
E B

LV
D

SE
 24

1S
T P

L

SE
 26

1S
T C

T
SE

 26
1S

T P
L

190TH PL SE

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

206TH AVE SE

155TH AVE SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

PL

169TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D 

CT

SE
 28

0T
H P

L

SE
 25

5T
H 

PL

SE
 25

1S
T P

L

183RD CT SE

SE 258TH PL

186
TH CT SE

SE
 24

2N
D 

ST

SE
 24

1S
T S

T

163RD PL SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

196TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

160TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST
SE

 26
8T

H S
T

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

RAMP

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

168TH AVE SE

188TH AVE SE

RA
MP

SE
 25

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

200TH AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H S

T

SE
 W

AX R
D

165TH PL SE

168TH PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST
SE

 26
7T

H 
PL

SE
 25

5T
H 

PL

172ND AVE SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D S

T

SR
 18

SE
 26

6T
H S

T

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

180TH AVE SE
SE

 27
0T

H S
T

168TH PL SE

192ND AVE SE

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H S

T
SE

 26
3R

D P
L

168TH PL SE

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

191ST PL SE

167TH PL SE

SE
 26

9T
H S

T

SE
 26

7T
H S

T

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

176TH AVE SE

203RD AVE SE

Pipe Lake

11
24

11
28

11
27

10
63

11
49

10
56

10
57

10
28

10
14

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

Th
is 

ma
p i

s i
nt

en
de

d f
or

 pl
an

nin
g p

ur
po

se
s o

nly
. 

Inf
or

ma
tio

n w
as

 co
mp

ile
d f

ro
m 

th
e m

os
t a

cc
ur

ate
 

so
ur

ce
s g

en
er

all
y a

va
ila

ble
.

Dr
aft

 6-
Ye

ar 
Tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

jec
ts 

20
15

-20
20

 

Ci
ty 

of 
Co

vin
gto

n

C
re

at
ed

 B
y:

 S
ha

w
n 

B
uc

k 
05

/1
5/

20
14

.

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

10
29

O
:\C

ov
in

gt
on

_G
IS

_L
ib

ra
ry

\P
R

O
JE

C
T_

FO
LD

E
R

\P
ub

lic
_W

or
ks

\S
tre

et
s\

TI
P

_M
ap

s\
6_

Ye
ar

_T
IP

\6
_Y

ea
r_

TI
P.

m
xd

12
01

TC
1TC

2

10
86

ATTACHMENT 2

56 of 98



A
D

O
P

T
E

D
 _

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

 b
y 

R
E

S
O

LU
T

IO
N

 _
__

__
   

1
2

3
4

5
6

T
ot

al
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
P

rio
rit

y
C

ity
 C

IP
 #

, P
ro

je
ct

 N
am

e,
  T

er
m

in
i, 

 M
aj

or
 C

la
ss

 o
f W

or
k

P
ha

se
F

un
de

d
F

un
ds

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

1
11

27
,

D
gn

X
X

0
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

E
 2

72
nd

 S
tr

ee
t (

S
R

 5
16

) 
R

-o
-W

X
X

0
 

 
 

 
 

 
Je

nk
in

s 
C

re
ek

 to
 1

85
th

 P
la

ce
 S

E
 

C
on

st
13

,1
58

13
,1

58
 

 
 

 
 

W
id

en
 to

 5
 la

ne
s 

&
 r

ec
on

st
ru

ct
, S

id
ew

al
ks

, N
ew

 s
tr

ea
m

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
13

,1
58

13
,1

58
0

0
0

0
0

2
10

14
,

D
gn

X
X

78
Je

nk
in

s 
C

re
ek

 P
ar

k
R

-o
-W

N
/A

0
S

E
 2

67
th

 P
la

ce
 to

 S
E

 2
68

th
 S

tr
ee

t
C

on
st

X
X

46
6

46
6

N
on

 M
ot

or
iz

ed
 M

ul
ti-

us
e 

tr
ai

l a
nd

 b
rid

ge
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

54
4

46
6

0
3

12
01

,
D

gn
3,

59
0

20
4t

h 
A

ve
nu

e 
S

E
R

-o
-W

68
6

S
c h

ed
ul

e 
dr

iv
en

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

S
E

 2
72

nd
 S

tr
ee

t t
o 

S
E

 2
56

th
 S

tr
ee

t
C

on
st

22
,8

61
(M

ay
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 in

 p
or

tio
ns

)
W

id
en

 to
 fu

ll 
C

ity
 S

ta
nd

ar
d,

 S
id

ew
al

ks
, B

ic
yc

le
 L

an
es

, P
la

nt
ed

 M
ed

ia
ns

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

27
,1

36
4

10
86

,
D

gn
90

90
 

 
 

 
 

16
4t

h 
A

ve
nu

e 
S

E
R

-o
-W

91
 

91
 

 
 

 
S

E
 2

64
th

 S
tr

ee
t t

o 
S

E
 2

69
th

 S
tr

ee
t

C
on

st
82

3
 

82
3

 
 

 
 

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 5
' a

sp
ha

lt 
w

al
kw

ay
, d

ra
in

ag
e 

sw
al

e
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
1,

00
4

90
91

4
0

0
0

0
5

11
28

,
D

gn
1,

34
3

 
1,

34
3

 
 

 
 

S
E

 2
72

nd
 S

tr
ee

t (
S

R
 5

16
)

R
-o

-W
77

0
 

 
77

0
 

 
 

18
5t

h 
P

la
ce

 S
E

 to
 1

92
nd

 A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

C
on

st
14

,2
86

 
 

 
14

,2
86

 
 

W
id

en
 to

 5
 la

ne
s 

&
 r

ec
on

st
ru

ct
, S

id
ew

al
ks

, N
ew

 s
ig

na
l.

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

16
,3

99
0

1,
34

3
77

0
14

,2
86

0
0

6
10

63
,

D
gn

97
9

 
 

97
9

 
 

 
S

E
 2

72
nd

 S
tr

ee
t (

S
ta

te
 R

ou
te

 5
16

)
R

-o
-W

1,
39

8
 

 
 

1,
39

8
 

 
16

0t
h 

A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

 to
 1

64
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

C
on

st
10

,3
40

 
 

 
 

10
,3

40
 

S
ig

na
l m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, a

dd
 tu

rn
 la

ne
s,

 s
tr

ea
m

 c
ro

ss
in

g.
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
12

,7
17

0
0

97
9

1,
39

8
10

,3
40

0
7

P
or

tio
ns

 o
f 1

05
6 

an
d 

11
49

D
gn

49
8

 
 

 
 

49
8

 
S

E
 2

56
th

 S
tr

ee
t a

nd
 1

80
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

R
-o

-W
24

2
 

 
 

 
 

24
2

S
af

et
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

,S
id

ew
al

ks
 

C
on

st
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
ig

na
l m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
, a

dd
 r

ig
ht

 tu
rn

 la
ne

.
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
74

0
0

0
0

0
49

8
24

2
8

T
ow

n 
C

en
te

r 
1

D
gn

1,
55

0
S

E
 2

76
th

 S
tr

ee
t

R
-o

-W
6,

98
1

S
ch

ed
ul

e 
dr

iv
en

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

16
8t

h 
P

la
ce

 S
E

 to
 S

E
 W

ax
 R

oa
d

C
on

st
4,

65
0

(M
ay

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 in
 p

or
tio

ns
)

N
ew

 R
ou

te
, N

ew
 A

lig
nm

en
t, 

T
yp

e 
II 

R
oa

dw
ay

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

13
,1

80
9

T
ow

n 
C

en
te

r 
2

D
gn

57
9

17
2n

d 
A

ve
nu

e 
S

E
 

R
-o

-W
98

9
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

dr
iv

en
 b

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
S

E
 2

75
th

 S
tr

ee
t t

o 
S

E
 2

76
th

 S
tr

ee
t

C
on

st
1,

73
7

(M
ay

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 in
 p

or
tio

ns
)

N
ew

 R
ou

te
, N

ew
 A

lig
nm

en
t, 

T
yp

e 
I R

oa
dw

ay
T

ot
al

 C
os

t
3,

30
4

10
11

24
,

D
gn

1,
13

1
 

 
 

 
 

1,
13

1
18

5t
h 

P
la

ce
 S

E
 E

xt
en

si
on

R
-o

-W
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
ax

 R
oa

d/
18

0t
h 

A
ve

nu
e 

S
E

 R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t t

o 
S

E
 2

72
nd

 S
tr

ee
t

C
on

st
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
ew

 R
ou

te
, N

ew
 A

lig
nm

en
t, 

A
cc

es
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t.

T
ot

al
 C

os
t

1,
13

1
0

0
0

0
0

1,
13

1

3.
0%

A
nn

ua
l C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
os

t I
nc

re
as

e
T

O
T

A
L

89
,3

13
13

,7
14

2,
25

7
1,

74
9

15
,6

84
10

,8
38

1,
37

3

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
in

 T
ho

us
an

ds

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

O
V

IN
G

T
O

N
20

15
 t

o
 2

0 2
0 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y

ATTACHMENT 3

57 of 98



Consent Agenda Item C-7 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 10, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 

GRAY & OSBORNE, INC. FOR THE DESIGN OF JENKINS CREEK PARK – 
PEDESTRIAN ADA TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Contract for Services 
 
PREPARED BY:  Dan Wesley, Construction Inspector 
 
EXPLANATION: 
As part of the 2014 King County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, the 
City of Covington was allocated federal funding in the amount of $418,000 for pedestrian and 
ADA trail improvements within Jenkins Creek Park.  The project will restore and enhance the 
existing trail system within Jenkins Creek Park and re-open the pedestrian connection to Jenkins 
Creek Elementary School, the Home Depot commercial area, and the downtown area.  
 
In March of this year environmental evaluations of the project site began and a request for 
qualifications for consulting and design was advertised, with two firms responding.  Interviews 
were conducted on March 26th and Gray & Osborne was selected to be the design and consulting 
engineer on this project. 
 
The project includes construction of a new pedestrian bridge, which will be constructed to 
support maintenance vehicles, at the west entrance of the park in the area of the previously 
washed out bridge, widening and paving of approximately 1,225 feet of existing path, and 
replacing an existing, deteriorating pedestrian timber bridge all of which will meet current multi-
use, accessibility standards. We are anticipating the construction phase to take place in the spring 
or summer of next year. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
We are requesting that the council authorize the estimated $96,855 for design and required 
environmental and cultural studies.  This site is unique in that the project involves crossing 
Jenkins Creek and the outfall from Spring Lake.  Consequently, the above estimate is $18,855 
more than previously estimated during the grant submittal, primarily due to increased 
environmental requirements.   
 
The original planning level estimate during the grant submittal process was $78,000 for design 
and $340,000 for construction.  With the increased environmental requirements mentioned 
above, the actual fee from Gray & Osborne is $96,855.  King County will adjust the funding to 
allocate $96,855 for design and $321,145 for construction.  The reduction in construction 
funding may result in a shortfall but can be better addressed once we have completed design and 

58 of 98



have a firm contractor bid for construction.  This will come back to Council for approval during 
the construction contract phase. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance               Resolution       X    Motion             Other  
 

Council member ______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement in 
substantial form to that attached hereto with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for the 
design of Jenkins Creek Park Pedestrian – ADA Trail Improvements. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

59 of 98



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
City of Covington and Gray and Osborne 

 
City of Covington Jenkins Creek Park - Pedestrian and ADA Path Improvements 

(Project # C13249) 
 
 
This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Covington, a Washington State 
Municipality and Gray and Osborne Consulting Engineers, herein referred to as "the 
Contractor", whose office is located at:  701 Dexter Avenue North, Suite 200 
                                                                        Seattle, Washington 98019 
 
This agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the City and the 
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or 
oral. This agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this contract agreement and in 
Exhibit A, B and Appendix A. The parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope and Schedule of Services to be performed by Contractor. The Contractor shall 
perform those services described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference as if fully set forth. In performing such services, the Contractor shall at all times 
comply with all federal, state, and local statutes, rules and ordinances applicable to the 
performance of such services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith. The 
Contractor shall request and obtain prior written approval from the City prior to the initiation of 
any specific task not included in the scope of services. If the scope or schedule is to be modified 
in any way, prior written approval is also required. 
 
2. Compensation and Method of Payment. Payments shall be made by the City to the 
Contractor based on month-end billings.  The City shall pay the Contractor for services rendered 
within thirty days after receipt of a billing voucher in the form set forth on Exhibit B attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  The total amount to be paid shall not exceed 
$96,855. 
 
With the monthly invoice, per the attached Billing Voucher (Exhibit B), shall be a narrative 
review and schedule of the past month’s activities, along with the work products developed, 
for which the invoice serves. 
 
3. Duration of Agreement. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 
commencing June 10, 2014 and ending May 31, 2015 unless sooner terminated under the 
provisions hereinafter specified. 
 
4. Ownership and Use of Documents. All documents, drawings, specifications, computer 
files, photographs, calculations, models, maps, and other materials produced by the Contractor in 
connection with the services rendered under this Agreement shall be the property of the City 
whether the project for which they are made is executed or not. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

60 of 98



City of Covington 
Jenkins Creek Park - Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
Contract with Gray & Osborne Inc. 
June 1, 2014 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

5. Independent Contractor. The Contractor is and shall be at all times during the term of this 
Agreement an independent contractor, and not an employee of the City.  Any and all employees 
of the Contractor or other persons while engaged in the performance of any work or services 
required of the Contractor under this Agreement shall be considered to be employees of the 
Contractor only and not employees of the City.  The Contractor and City agree to the following 
rights consistent with an independent contractor relationship: 
 

A. Contractor has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner and method 
by which the services required by this Agreement will be performed. 
 
B. Contractor will furnish all equipment and materials used to provide the services 
required by this Agreement. 
 
C. The Contractor or Contractor's employees or contract personnel shall perform the 
services required by this Agreement; the City shall not hire or supervise any assistants to 
help Contractor. 
 
D. Neither Contractor nor Contractor's employees or contract personnel shall receive 
any training from City in the skills necessary to perform the services required by this 
Agreement. 
 
E. City shall not require Contractor or Contractor's employees or contract personnel 
to devote full time to performing the services required by this Agreement. 
 

The Contractor acknowledges that it is responsible for the payment of all charges and taxes 
applicable to the services performed under this Agreement, and the Contractor agrees to comply 
with all applicable laws regarding the reporting of income, maintenance of insurance and 
records, and all other requirements and obligations imposed as a result of the Contractor’s status 
as an independent contractor.  If the City is assessed, liable or responsible in any manner for such 
charges or taxes, the Contractor agrees to hold the City harmless from such costs, including 
attorney's fees. 
 
The Contractor shall provide at its sole expense all materials, office space, and other necessities 
to perform its duties under this Agreement, unless otherwise specified in writing. 
 
The Contractor, at its expense, shall obtain and keep in force any and all necessary licenses and 
permits to perform the work provided for herein.   
 
This Agreement shall be for the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing contained herein 
shall create a contractual relationship with, or create a cause of action in favor of, a third party 
against either party hereto. 
 
City shall not provide any insurance coverage of any kind for Contractor or Contractor's 
employees or contract personnel.  Contractor agrees to maintain adequate insurance to cover any 

61 of 98



City of Covington 
Jenkins Creek Park - Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
Contract with Gray & Osborne Inc. 
June 1, 2014 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

negligent acts committed by Contractor or Contractor's employees or agents while performing 
services under this Agreement. 
 
 
6. Indemnification.  
 
A. The Contractor agrees to indemnify the City from any claims, damages, losses, and costs, 

including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and litigation costs, arising out of claims by 
third parties for property damage and bodily injury, including death, caused by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of the Contractor, the Contractor’s employees, affiliated 
corporations, officers, and lower tier subcontractors in connection with this Contract, 
either solely or in combination with the negligence or willful misconduct of third parties. 

 
B. The City agrees to indemnify Contractor from any claims, damages, losses, and costs, 

including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and litigation costs, arising out of claims by 
third parties for property damage and bodily injury, including death, caused by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of the City, or agents in connection with this Contract, 
either solely or in combination with the negligence or willful misconduct of third parties. 

 
C. If negligence or willful misconduct of both the Contractor and the City (or a person 

identified above for whom each is liable) is a cause of such damage or injury, the loss, 
cost or expense shall be shared between the Contractor and the City in proportion to their 
relative degrees of negligence or willful misconduct and the right of indemnity shall 
apply for such proportion. 

 
D. The Contractor hereby waives its immunity under Title 51 of the Revised Code of 

Washington for claims of any type brought by any Contractor agent or employee against 
the City. This waiver is specifically negotiated by the parties and a portion of the City’s 
payment hereunder is expressly made the consideration for this waiver. 

 
 
7. Reports - Printed Copies & Electronic Version: When reports are required to be 
submitted to the City pursuant to this agreement, Contractor will provide three (3) printed copies 
to the City and an electronic version.  Said electronic version shall be submitted to the City in a 
computer format compatible with PC software programs in current use by the City (Microsoft 
Word, Microsoft Excel, Microsoft Access, Microsoft PowerPoint, Microsoft Publisher, Visio, 
AutoCAD, and Adobe Acrobat). 
 
8. Audits and Inspections. The records and documents with respect to all matters covered by 
this Agreement shall be subject at all times to inspection, review or audit by law during the 
performance of this Agreement. The Contractor shall permit the City, state and federal agencies, 
from time to time as the City deems necessary or as required by state, local, or federal law or 
regulation, to inspect and audit, at any and all reasonable times, all pertinent books and records 
of the Contractor and any other person or entity which has performed work in connection with or 
related to the Contractor's services under this Agreement to verify the accuracy of accounting 

62 of 98



City of Covington 
Jenkins Creek Park - Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
Contract with Gray & Osborne Inc. 
June 1, 2014 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

records, and shall supply the City with, or shall permit the City to make, a copy of any books and 
records and any portion thereof pertaining to work under this Agreement, upon the City's 
request.  The Contractor shall ensure that such inspection, audit and copying right of the City is a 
condition of any contract, agreement or other arrangement under which any other person or 
entity is permitted to perform work in connection with or related to the Contractor's services 
under this Agreement. 
 
9. Termination. This Agreement may at any time be terminated by the City giving to the 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of the City's intention to terminate the same.  Failure to 
provide products on schedule may result in contract termination. 
 
10. Discrimination Prohibited. The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee, 
applicant for employment, or any person seeking the services of the Contractor to be provided 
under this Agreement on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, families with children, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, age, or the presence of any sensory, 
mental, or physical disability or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a disabled 
person. 
 
11. Assignment and Subcontract. The Contractor may not assign or subcontract any portion 
of the services contemplated by this Agreement without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
12. Conflict of Interest. 
   
A. Governmental.  No officer or agent of the City who exercises any function or 

responsibilities in connection with the approval of, planning and carrying out of the 
program or services to which this Agreement pertains, nor any member of the immediate 
family of any such officer, employee or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in this Agreement, either in fact or in appearance, unless such interest is 
a remote interest as defined pursuant to RCW 42.23.040.   

B. Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and City conflict of 
interest laws, statutes, regulations and policies as they shall apply to all parties and 
beneficiaries under this Agreement, as well as to officers, employees or agents of the 
City.  The Contractor represents that the Contractor presently has no interest and shall not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, in fact or in appearance, which would conflict in 
any manner or degree with the performance of the Contractor's services and obligations 
hereunder.  The Contractor also agrees that its violation of the conflict of interest 
provisions of this agreement shall constitute a material breach of this contract subjecting 
the contract to termination.  The Contractor has a continuing obligation to search and 
report any actual or potential conflicts of interest during the course of performing work 
under this Agreement. 

C. Contractor Employees. The Contractor further covenants that, with respect to its 
performance of this Agreement, no person having any interest, direct or indirect, in fact 
or in appearance, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of 

63 of 98



City of Covington 
Jenkins Creek Park - Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
Contract with Gray & Osborne Inc. 
June 1, 2014 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

the Contractor's services and obligations hereunder, shall be employed to perform or 
provide services under this Agreement.  The Contractor further covenants that it will 
implement and enforce requirements that its employees, with respect to this Agreement 
or the activities assisted by or through this Agreement, (a) will not use their position for 
personal gain, (b) will not engage in activities that directly or indirectly, in fact or in 
appearance, conflict with in any manner or degree, the performance of the Contractor's 
services and obligations hereunder, (c) will not have or obtain, directly or indirectly, a 
pecuniary interest, either for himself or herself or for those with whom he or she may 
have business ties or immediate family ties, or (e) will not benefit directly or indirectly, 
in fact or in appearance, either for himself or those with whom he or she may have 
business ties, and (f) will not accept or engage in outside employment that would conflict 
directly or indirectly, in fact or in appearance, with his or her responsibilities under this 
Agreement.  

13. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the parties 
hereto and no other Agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this 
Agreement, shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the parties hereto.  Either party may request 
changes in the agreement. Proposed changes which are mutually agreed upon shall be 
incorporated by written amendments to this Agreement. 

14. Notices. Administrative notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
 

Bob Lindskov  
City of Covington  
16720 SE 271st St,  
Covington, WA 98042 
Telephone:  (253) 480-2400 

 
Legal notices shall be sent to the City at the above address. 
 
Notices to the Contractor shall be sent to the following address: 
 

Tani Stafford 
701 Dexter Avenue North Suite 200 
Seattle, Wa. 98109 
206-284-0860 
tstafford@g-o.com 

  
The point of contact for the Contractor or the person responsible for the contract services is: 

Name:  Same as Above 
Telephone Number:   
Fax Number:  
E-mail:  

 

64 of 98



City of Covington 
Jenkins Creek Park - Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
Contract with Gray & Osborne Inc. 
June 1, 2014 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

15. State of Washington Requirements.  Contractor agrees to register and obtain any State of 
Washington business licenses, Department of Revenue account and/or unified business identifier 
number as required by RCW 50.04.140 and 51.08.195 prior to performing any work pursuant to 
this Agreement. 
 
16. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorney's Fees. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. In the event any suit, 
arbitration, or other proceeding is instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the parties 
specifically understand and agree that venue shall be exclusively in King County, Washington. 
The prevailing party in any such action shall be entitled to its attorney's fees and costs of suit. 
 
 
DATED this _____________ day of _______________, _____ 
 
 
ENGINEERING FIRM     CITY OF COVINGTON  
 
By:___________________________   By: ________________________________ 
     
Name:         Name: _____________________________ 
 
Title:  ________________________ Title: ________________________________ 
 
Date:       Date:      
 
 

65 of 98



66 of 98

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Text Box



67 of 98



68 of 98



69 of 98



70 of 98



71 of 98



72 of 98



73 of 98



74 of 98



75 of 98



76 of 98



77 of 98



78 of 98



79 of 98

bparrish
Text Box

bparrish
Typewritten Text
A-1

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text

bparrish
Typewritten Text



 

 

 EXHIBIT B 
 
 Billing Voucher 
 
To: City of Covington 16720 SE 271 Street Suite 100   
 Covington, Washington 98042 
 Phone:  (253) 480-2400 
   
 
Contractor: ______________________________ Telephone: _________________ 
 
Mailing Address: ______________________________________________________ 
 
Specific Program: ______________________________________________________ 
 
Contract period:     Reporting Period:      
 
Amount requested this invoice: $_____________________ 
 
Invoice Number: _________________ Date of Invoice _____________ 
 
________________________________  
Authorized signature 
---------------------------------------------------------------- 
BUDGET SUMMARY: 
 
Total contract amount   $______________ 
Previous payments   $______________ 
Current request   $______________ 
Total requested this 
     contract to date   $______________ 
Balance remaining   $______________ 
 
Note:  If applicable, submit a separate voucher for each program which is funded by your City  
contract. 
----------------------------------------------------------------- 
 For Department Use Only 
Approved for Payment: 
 
________________________________  Date: ___________________ 
 

80 of 98



 

City of Covington   Appendix A – King County Housing and Community 
Jenkins Creek Park  Development Supplementary Conditions 
Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
 Page 1  

 
Appendix A 

 
King County Housing and Community Development 

Supplementary Conditions 
 

Architecture and Engineering Contract between City of Covington (“City”) and Gray & 
Osborne, Inc. (“Engineer”) 

 
Covington Jenkins Creek Park - Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 

16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042-4964 

 

1. SUPERSEDING 

If there are conflicts between this exhibit and other sections of the Architecture and 
Engineering contract agreement and amendments these Supplementary Conditions 
shall supersede such sections. 

References in this exhibit refer to Project-Associated King County Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Contract agreement. 

2. INCLUSIONS 

An Architecture and Engineer contract agreement between the City and Engineer 
funded with federal funds through King County Housing and Community 
Development shall also include the following Sections in every subcontract or 
purchase order for goods and services which are paid in whole or in part with funds 
provided under King County Contract: 

3. SECTION XVII  Indemnification. 

A. The Engineer shall protect, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless King County, 
its officers, employees, and agents from any and all costs, claims, judgments, 
and/or awards of damages arising out of, or in any way resulting from the 
negligent act or omissions of subcontractor, its officers, employee, and/or agents 
in connection with or in support of this Contract.  Subcontractor expressly agrees 
and understands that King County is a third party beneficiary to this Contract and 
shall have the right to bring an action against subcontractor to enforce the 
provisions of this paragraph.” 

81 of 98



 

City of Covington   Appendix A – King County Housing and Community 
Jenkins Creek Park  Development Supplementary Conditions 
Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
 Page 2  

4. SECTION XVII.B.   City Agreement to Repay 

The Engineer further agrees that it is financially responsible for and shall repay 
the County all indicated amounts following an audit exception that occurs due to 
the negligence, intentional act, and/or failure, for any reason, to comply with the 
terms of this Contract by the Engineer, its officers, employees, agents, and/or 
representatives.  This duty to repay the County shall not be diminished or 
extinguished by the prior termination of the Contract pursuant to the Duration of 
Contract or the Termination Sections. 

5. SECTION XVIII Insurance Requirements 

A. SECTION XVIII.F 

a. Services Agreements:  The Engineer shall maintain limits no less than the 
following: 

(i) Commercial General Liability:  $1,000,000 combined single limit per 
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage and 
$2,000,000 in the aggregate. 

(ii) Automobile Liability:  $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage. 

(iii)Professional Liability, Errors & Omissions:  $1,000,000, Per Claim and in 
the Aggregate. 

(iv) Workers Compensation:  Statutory requirements of the State of Residency. 

(v) Stop Gap or Employers Liability Coverage:  $1,000,000. 

B. SECTION XVIII.G 

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to, and approved by, 
the County.  The deductible and/or self-insured retention of the policies shall not 
apply to the Engineer liability to the County and shall be the sole responsibility of 
the Engineer. 

C. SECTION XVIII.H Other Insurance Provisions  

The insurance policies required in this Contract are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions: 

a. All Liability Policies except Professional and Workers Compensation. 

82 of 98



 

City of Covington   Appendix A – King County Housing and Community 
Jenkins Creek Park  Development Supplementary Conditions 
Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
 Page 3  

(i) The County, its officers, officials, employees, and agents are to be covered 
as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities 
performed by or on behalf of the Engineer in connection with this 
Contract.  Such coverage shall include Products-Completed Operations. 

(ii) To the extent of the Engineer negligence, the Engineer insurance coverage 
shall be primary insurance as respects the County, its officers, officials, 
employees, and agents.  Any insurance and/or self-insurance maintained 
by the County, its officers, officials, employees, or agents shall not 
contribute with the Engineer’s insurance or benefit the Engineer in any 
way. 

(iii)The Engineer’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom claim is made and/or lawsuit is brought, except with respect to the 
limits of the insurer’s liability. 

b. Property Coverage Policies 

(i) The County shall be added to all Property Coverage Policies as a loss 
payee as its interests may appear. 

(ii) The County shall be added as a Named Insured as their interests may 
appear to all Builders Risk policies. 

c. All Policies 

Coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in 
limits, except by the reduction of the applicable aggregate limit by claims 
paid, until after 30 days prior written notice has been given to the County. 

D. SECTION XVIII.I Acceptability of Insurers  

Unless otherwise approved by the County, insurance is to be placed with insurers 
with a Bests’ rating of no less than A: VIII, or, if not rated with Bests, with 
minimum surpluses the equivalent of Bests’ surplus size VIII.   

Professional Liability, Errors, and Omissions insurance may be placed with 
insurers with a Bests’ rating of B+VII.  Any exception must be approved by the 
County. 

If, at any time, the foregoing policies shall fail to meet the above requirements, 
the City shall, upon notice to that effect from the County, promptly obtain a new 
policy, and shall submit the same to the County, with appropriate certificates and 
endorsements, for approval. 

E. SECTION XVIII.J Verification of Coverage  

The Engineer shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance and 
endorsements required by this Contract.  The certificates and endorsements for 

83 of 98



 

City of Covington   Appendix A – King County Housing and Community 
Jenkins Creek Park  Development Supplementary Conditions 
Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
 Page 4  

each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance 
policy are to be on forms approved by the County prior to the commencement of 
activities associated with the Contract.  The County reserves the right to require 
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time. 

F. SECTION XVIII.K Subcontractors  

The City shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall 
require separate certificates of insurance and policy endorsements from each 
subcontractor.  If the City is relying on the insurance coverages provided by 
subcontractors as evidence of compliance with the insurance requirements of this 
Contract, then such requirements and documentation shall be subject to all of the 
requirements stated herein. 

6. SECTION XIX Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity   

A. SECTION XIX.B Nondiscrimination in Employment Provision of Services  

During the performance of this Contract, neither the Engineer nor any party 
subcontracting under the authority of this Contract shall discriminate or tolerate 
harassment on the basis of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, marital status, 
sexual orientation, age, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical 
disability in the employment or application for employment or in the 
administration or delivery of services or any other benefits under this Contract. 
King County Code Chapters 12.16 and 12.17 are incorporated herein by 
reference, and to the extent applicable such requirements shall apply to this 
Contract.   

B. SECTION XIX.C Nondiscrimination in Subcontracting Practices  

During the solicitation, award and term of this Contract, the Engineer shall not 
create barriers to open and fair opportunities to participate in County contracts or 
to obtain or compete for contracts and subcontracts as sources of supplies, 
equipment, construction and services.  In considering offers from and doing 
business with subcontractors and suppliers, the Engineer shall not discriminate 
against any person on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, 
marital status, sexual orientation or the presence of any mental or physical 
disability in an otherwise qualified disabled person. 

C. SECTION XIX.D Compliance with Laws and Regulations  

The Engineer shall comply fully with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
ordinances, Presidential Executive Orders and regulations that prohibit 
discrimination to the extent applicable.  These laws include, but are not limited to, 
KCC Chapter 12.17; RCW Chapter 49.60; Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, 42 USC 2000(a) et seq.; the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 

84 of 98



 

City of Covington   Appendix A – King County Housing and Community 
Jenkins Creek Park  Development Supplementary Conditions 
Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
 Page 5  

USC 12101 et seq.; and the Restoration Act of 1987.  The Engineer shall further 
comply fully with any affirmative action requirements set forth in any federal 
regulations, statutes or rules included or referenced in the contract documents. 

D. SECTION XIX.E Small Business and Minority and Women Business Enterprise 
Opportunities  

King County encourages the Engineer to utilize small businesses, including 
Minority-owned and Women-owned Business Enterprises (“M/WBEs”) in 
County contracts.  The County encourages the Engineer to use the following 
voluntary practices to promote open competitive opportunities for small 
businesses, including M/WBEs. 

a. Attending a pre-bid or pre-solicitation conference, if scheduled by the County, 
to provide project information and to inform small businesses and other firms 
of contracting and subcontracting opportunities. 

b. Placing all qualified small businesses, attempting to do business in King 
County, including M/WBEs, on solicitation lists, and providing written notice 
of subcontracting opportunities to these firms capable of performing the work, 
including without limitation all businesses on any list provided by the County, 
in sufficient time to allow such businesses to respond to the written 
solicitations. 

c. Breaking down total requirements into smaller tasks or quantities, where 
economically feasible, in order to permit maximum participation by small 
businesses, including M/WBEs. 

d. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirements of this Contract 
permit, that encourages participation by small businesses, including M/WBEs. 

e. Providing small businesses, including M/WBEs that express interest with 
adequate and timely information about plans, specifications and requirements 
of the Contract. 

f. Using the services of available community organizations, contractor groups, 
local assistance offices, the County, and other organizations that provide 
assistance in the recruitment and placement of small businesses, including 
M/WBEs. 

g. The Washington State Office of Minority and Women’s Business Enterprises 
(OMWBE) can provide a list of certified M/WBEs.  Contact OMWBE office 
at 360- 866-208-1064 or on-line through the web site at 
http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/. 

E. SECTION XIX.F Equal Employment Opportunity  

85 of 98

http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/


 

City of Covington   Appendix A – King County Housing and Community 
Jenkins Creek Park  Development Supplementary Conditions 
Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
 Page 6  

The Engineer shall implement and carry out the obligations in its Affidavit and 
Certificate of Compliance regarding equal employment opportunity, and all other 
requirements as set forth in the Affidavit and Certificate of Compliance. 

F. SECTION XIX.G Fair Employment Practices  

a. King County Code Chapter 12.18 is incorporated by reference as if fully set 
forth herein and, to the extent applicable, such requirements apply to this 
Contract.  In particular, these requirements specify that during the 
performance of this Contract, neither the Engineer nor any party 
subcontracting under the authority of this Contract shall engage in unfair 
employment practices.  It is an unfair employment practice for any:   

(i) Employer or labor organization to discriminate against any person with 
respect to referral, hiring, tenure, promotion, terms, conditions, wages or 
other privileges of employment; 

(ii) Employment City or labor organization to discriminate against any person 
with respect to membership rights and privileges, admission to or 
participation in any guidance program, apprenticeship training program, or 
other occupational training program; 

(iii)Employer, employment City, or labor organization to print, circulate, or 
cause to be printed, published or circulated, any statement, advertisement, 
or publication relating to employment or membership, or to use any form 
of application therefore, which indicates any discrimination unless based 
upon a bona fide occupation qualification; 

(iv) Employment City to discriminate against any person with respect to any 
reference for employment or assignment to a particular job classification; 

(v) Employer, employment City or a labor organization to retaliate against 
any person because that person has opposed any practice forbidden by 
KCC Chapter 12.18 or because that person has made a charge, testified or 
assisted in any manner in any investigation, proceeding or hearing 
initiated under the provisions of KCC Chapter 12.18; 

(vi) Publisher, firm, corporation, organization or City  printing, publishing or 
circulating any newspaper, magazine or other written publication to print 
or cause to be printed or circulated any advertisement with knowledge that 
the same is in violation of KCC 12.18.030(C), or to segregate and 
separately designate advertisements as applying only to men or women 
unless such discrimination is reasonably necessary to the normal operation 
of the particular business, enterprise or employment, unless based upon a 
bona fide occupational qualification;  

(vii) Employer to prohibit any person from speaking in a language other 
than English in the workplace unless: 

86 of 98



 

City of Covington   Appendix A – King County Housing and Community 
Jenkins Creek Park  Development Supplementary Conditions 
Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
 Page 7  

(a) The employer can show that requiring that employees speak English at 
certain times is justified by business necessity; and 

(b) The employer informs employees of the requirement and the 
consequences of violating the rule. 

b. If the Engineer engages in unfair employment practices as defined above, 
remedies as set forth in KCC Chapter 12.18 may be applied, in addition to 
those remedies specified in the Contract or otherwise available at law or 
equity. 

G. SECTION XIX.H Record-Keeping Requirements and Site Visits  

a. The Engineer shall maintain, for at least six years after completion of all work 
under this Contract, the following: 

(i) Records of employment, employment advertisements, application forms, 
and other pertinent data, records and information related to employment, 
applications for employment or the administration or delivery of services 
or any other benefits under this Contract; and 

(ii) Records, including written quotes, bids, estimates or proposals submitted 
to the Engineer by all businesses seeking to participate on this Contract, 
and any other information necessary to document the actual use of and 
payments to subcontractors and suppliers in this Contract, including 
employment records. 

(iii)The County may visit, at any time, the site of the work and the Engineer’s 
office to review the foregoing records.  The Engineer shall provide every 
assistance requested by the County during such visits.  In all other 
respects, the Engineer shall make the foregoing records available to the 
County for inspection and copying upon request.  If this Contract involves 
federal funds, the Engineer shall comply with all record keeping 
requirements set forth in any federal rules, regulations or statutes included 
or referenced in the contract documents. 

H. SECTION XIX.I Sanctions for Violations  

Any violation of the mandatory requirements of the provisions of this Section 
shall be a material breach of contract for which the City may be subject to 
damages, withholding payment and any other sanctions provided for by the 
Contract and by applicable law. 

7. SECTION XXI Nondiscrimination in subcontracting practices  

Projects using federal funds shall comply with the following requirements: 

A. Federal Requirements 

87 of 98



 

City of Covington   Appendix A – King County Housing and Community 
Jenkins Creek Park  Development Supplementary Conditions 
Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
 Page 8  

In soliciting subcontractors to supply goods or services for the activities under this 
Contract, the Engineer shall comply with 24 CFR § 85.36(e) as amended if the 
City is a municipal corporation or an City of the State of Washington, and 24 CFR 
§ 84.44(b)(1)-(5) if the City is a nonprofit corporation.  In accordance with these 
regulations, the Engineer shall take all necessary affirmative steps to assure 
M/WBEs and labor surplus area firms are used as subcontractors when possible.  
Affirmative steps shall include those actions specified above in this Section of the 
Contract. 

B. Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Construction 

The Engineer shall also require compliance with Presidential Executive Order 
11246 as amended and 41 CFR Part 60 regarding nondiscrimination in bid 
conditions for construction projects over $10,000. 

8. SECTION XXII Section 504 and Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA). 

The City has completed a 504/ADA Self-Evaluation Questionnaire for all 
programs and services offered by the City (including any services not subject to 
this Contract) and has evaluated its services, programs and employment practices 
for compliance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 USC 701 et 
seq.; and the ADA, 42 USC 12101 et seq. as amended.  The City has completed a 
504/ADA Assurance of Compliance.  Such Assurance of Compliance is attached 
to this Contract and is incorporated herein by this reference. 

A. Record-Keeping Requirements and Site Visits 

The Engineer shall maintain, for at least six years after completion of all work 
under this Contract, the following: 

a. Records of employment, employment advertisements, application forms, and 
other pertinent data, records and information related to employment, 
applications for employment or the administration or delivery of services or 
any other benefits under this Contract; and 

b. Records, including written quotes, bids, estimates or proposals submitted to 
the Engineer by all businesses seeking to participate on this Contract, and any 
other information necessary to document the actual use of and payments to 
subcontractors and suppliers in this Contract, including employment records. 

c. The County may visit, at any time, the site of the work and the Engineer office 
to review the foregoing records.  The Engineer shall provide every assistance 
requested by the County during such visits.  In all other respects, the City shall 
make the foregoing records available to the County for inspection and copying 
upon request.  If this Contract involves federal funds, the Engineer shall 
comply with all record keeping requirements set forth in any federal rules, 
regulations or statutes included or referenced in the contract documents. 

88 of 98



 

City of Covington   Appendix A – King County Housing and Community 
Jenkins Creek Park  Development Supplementary Conditions 
Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
 Page 9  

9. SECTION XXVII.B No Preferential Treatment  

The Engineer agrees that it will not attempt to secure preferential treatment in 
dealings with the County by offering any valuable consideration, thing of value, or 
gift, whether in the form of services, loan, thing, or promise, in any form, to any 
County official or employee.  The Engineer acknowledges that if it is found to have 
violated the prohibition found in this paragraph its current contracts with the County 
shall be cancelled and it shall not be able to bid on any County contract for a period 
of two years. 

10. SECTION XXIX Political Activity Prohibited  

A. No Partisan Activity: 

None of the funds, materials, property or services provided directly or indirectly 
under this Contract shall be used for any partisan political activity or to further the 
election or defeat of any candidate for public office. 

B. Certification Regarding Lobbying: All Projects using federal funds shall also 
comply with the following subsection: 

The Engineer certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:  

a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf 
of the Engineer, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any City, a member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any 
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, 
or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.   

b. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any City, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this 
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Engineer shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.  

The Engineer shall require that the language of this certification be included in 
the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, 
subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and 
that all subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.  

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this 

89 of 98



 

City of Covington   Appendix A – King County Housing and Community 
Jenkins Creek Park  Development Supplementary Conditions 
Pedestrian ADA Path Improvements 
 Page 10  

certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by 31 USC 1352.  Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 
more than $100,000 for each such failure.  

11. SECTION XXXIII Proprietary Rights  

The Engineer agrees to and does hereby grant to the County, irrevocable, nonexclusive, 
and royalty-free license to use, according to law, any patentable or copyrightable material 
or article and use any method that may be developed as part of the work under this 
Contract. 
 

90 of 98



  Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 10, 2014 

 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION REGARDING LED STREETLIGHTS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
1. City Owned Street Lights map 
2. Streetlight Conversion to LED spreadsheet 
 
PREPARED BY: Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
Technology has continued to advance in regards to light emitting diodes (LED) and their 
effectiveness in streetlights.  Their low energy consumption and longer life can dramatically 
reduce operating and maintenance costs.  However, the upfront costs to convert to an LED 
streetlight can take several years to reach cost recovery based on just the annual savings in 
operating and maintenance costs. 
 
There are several cities that have converted to LED streetlights.  However, the majority of the 
conversion has been for city-owned streetlights and not ones that are owned by PSE.  For 
example, the City of Renton recently converted nearly 4,000 city-owned streetlights that cost 
$4.3 million to complete.  The city received a $500,000 grant from the Department of Commerce 
and received $589,000 from PSE in the form of a Utility Incentive Grant.  The remaining $3.2 
million was financed through a 15-year low-interest Qualified Energy Conservation Bond.  The 
debt service on the bonds was about $216,000 per year but the city will save about $271,000 per 
year in energy costs, resulting in a net $55,000 annual savings.  In talking with Renton, they have 
about 2,000 streetlights that are owned by PSE and they are still working on the process to get 
those converted.   
 
The City of Des Moines is similar to us in that the majority of their streetlights are owned by 
PSE.  They have 1,655 streetlights that are owned by PSE and they are currently in a 3 year 
conversion process to convert 1,021 streetlights to LED.  The total cost to convert the 1,021 
lights was $195,000.  They received a PSE grant/rebate in the amount of $62,000.   The net 
installation costs were $133,000.  They decided to spread the conversion over three years and 
pay for the costs out of city funds.   
 
 Covington is responsible for about 491 streetlights throughout the city (see Attachment 1). 
There are 36 lights that are a streetlight mastarm on a telephone pole.  There are about 290 
streetlights that are the green fiberglass pole with the green mastarm and cobrahead.  There are 
109 acorn style street lights seen in downtown and residential streets and 56 cobra heads on steel 
poles on SR 516.  Except for the majority of the lights on SR 516 (inherited fromWSDOT), the 
rest of the lights mentioned above are owned by PSE (Intolight – a division of PSE) and we pay 
a monthly maintenance and operation fee for each of the lights based on the type.  

91 of 98



 
In talking with Intolight, they recommend starting with the streetlights on the telephone poles 
and the green fiberglass cobraheads.  They do not have a cost for the replacement of acorn style 
streetlights at this time.  As for the streetlights on SR 516, we would need to evaluate if we want 
to have Intolight take over the operation of those lights and do the conversion or we do a separate 
contract. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Attachment 2 shows a breakdown of the costs to convert the 36 streetlights on telephone poles 
and the 290 green fiberglass cobraheads.  The costs to convert these streetlights are $18,506.98 
and $125,293.33 with an annual savings of $2,498.88 and $13,881.72, respectively.  These costs 
include a rebate from PSE based on each light that is converted.  The cost of recovery without 
any additional grant funds would be on the order of 8 years.   
 
The Department of Commerce does have an Energy Efficiency Grant program in which local 
governments can apply.  Those applications are due September 18, 2014.  The grant is for energy 
efficiency buildings, streetlights as well as solar uses.  We plan on applying for this grant unless 
otherwise directed.    
 
The balance remaining after receiving any grant funds would need to be financed over a period 
of time (similar to the City of Renton process described above) that would keep our annual 
expenditures neutral. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:              Ordinance             Resolution            Motion      X     Other 
 

PROVIDE INPUT TO STAFF. 
 
REVIEWED BY:   City Manager, Finance Director, City Attorney 

92 of 98



! !
!

! ! !!!!!!!!

!
!!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!
!
!
!

!
!!!
!!
!!
!!!!

!

!
!!!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!!
!!!!
!

!! ! ! ! ! !
! !

!
! !

!

!
!
!

!

!!!!!!! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

! ! !!!
!

!

!
!

!
!
!
!! ! ! !

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!! !!!!!!!!!! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!
! !

!

!
!

!

!!!!!

!

!

!! !!!
!

!
!
!

!!!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!

! ! !
!! !

!

!!!!!!

! !!!!!! ! !!!

!
!

!!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
! !

!
!

!
!

!

! !!

!! !

!!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!

!
!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!
!

!
!

!

!!!! !

!
!

!

!!

! !!

!!

!
! !!

! ! ! !!!
! ! !

! ! ! !

!
!
!
!
!!!!!!!

!
!

!!
!

!
!

!
!!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

! !

!
!

!!
!!!

!

!
!

! ! ! !
!!!

! !!
!

!! !
!
!
!

!
! ! ! ! ! !!!!!!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!! !
!

!

!
!!

!

!

!
! !
!
!!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

SR
 18

SE
 27

2N
D 

ST

SE
 25

6T
H 

ST

RAMP

180TH AVE SE

164TH AVE SE

SE WAX RD

SE
 24

0T
H 

ST

156TH AVE SE

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

204TH AVE SE

SE
 25

1S
T S

T

168TH PL SE

156TH PL SE

COVINGTON WAY SE

170TH PL SE

160TH AVE SE

173RD AVE SE

SE
 27

9T
H P

L

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

SE
 26

7T
H S

T

197TH PL SE

172ND AVE SE
SE

 26
2N

D 
PL

199TH PL SE

TIMBERLANE WAY SE

191ST PL SE

194TH AVE SE

200TH AVE SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

PL

SE
 24

4T
H 

ST

161ST PL SE

193RD PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T S

T

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

SE
 26

6T
H 

PL

SE
 24

4T
H 

PL

SE
 27

7T
H 

PL

FR
ONT

AG
E R

D

210TH AVE SE

172ND PL SE
SE

 26
2N

D 
ST

170TH AVE SE

152ND AVE SE

SE
 24

6T
H 

ST

169TH PL SE

196TH AVE SE

177TH PL SE

166TH PL SE

SE
 25

9T
H S

T

SE
 25

4T
H 

PL

SE
 26

0T
H S

T

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

185TH PL SE186TH PL SE

151ST PL SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST

TIM
BERLANE DR SE

184TH AVE SE

167TH PL SE

161ST AVE SE

183RD AVE SE

175TH WAY SE

SE
 27

0T
H 

ST

SE
 24

7T
H 

ST

199TH AVE SE

179TH PL SE

176TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

170
TH

 W
AY

 SE

176TH PL SE SE
 26

0T
H 

PL

175TH AVE SE

159TH AVE SE

153RD AVE SE

SE
 25

9T
H 

PL

183RD PL SE

171ST PL SE

195TH PL SE

192ND PL SE

SE
 24

9T
H 

PL

171ST AVE SE

SE
 25

3R
D 

PL

188TH AVE SE

SE
 26

6T
H S

T

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

192ND AVE SE

203RD AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H 

PL

195TH CT SE

178TH PL SE

SE
 27

1S
T P

L

150TH PL SE

211TH AVE SE

165TH PL SE
SE

 25
6T

H 
PL

189
TH AVE SE

SE 258TH ST

159
TH PL SE

186TH AVE SE

208TH AVE SE

185TH AVE SE

162ND AVE SE

184TH PL SE

174TH PL SE

SE
 26

3R
D 

ST

168TH AVE SE

212TH AVE SE

196TH PL SE

SE
 25

4T
H 

ST

SE
 24

5T
H 

PL

SE
 24

6T
H 

PL

SE
 24

7T
H 

PL

SE
 TI

MBE
RL

AN
E B

LV
D

SE
 24

1S
T P

L

SE
 26

1S
T C

T
SE

 26
1S

T P
L

190TH PL SE

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

206TH AVE SE

155TH AVE SE

SE
 26

9T
H 

PL

169TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D 

CT

SE
 28

0T
H P

L

SE
 25

5T
H 

PL

SE
 25

1S
T P

L

183RD CT SE

SE 258TH PL

186
TH CT SE

SE
 24

2N
D 

ST

SE
 24

1S
T S

T

163RD PL SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

196TH AVE SE

SE
 26

4T
H 

ST

160TH AVE SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

9T
H 

ST
SE

 26
8T

H S
T

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

RAMP

SE
 26

5T
H S

T

168TH AVE SE

188TH AVE SE

RA
MP

SE
 25

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

7T
H 

PL

200TH AVE SE

SE
 26

8T
H S

T

SE
 W

AX R
D

165TH PL SE

168TH PL SE

SE
 26

0T
H 

ST

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST
SE

 26
7T

H 
PL

SE
 25

5T
H 

PL

172ND AVE SE

SE
 26

2N
D 

ST

SE
 25

9T
H 

ST

SE
 26

3R
D 

PL

SE
 26

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

3R
D S

T

SR
 18

SE
 26

6T
H S

T

SE
 26

8T
H 

ST

180TH AVE SE
SE

 27
0T

H S
T

168TH PL SE

192ND AVE SE

SE
 25

2N
D 

PL

SE
 26

4T
H S

T
SE

 26
3R

D P
L

168TH PL SE

SE
 26

6T
H 

ST

191ST PL SE

167TH PL SE

SE
 26

9T
H S

T

SE
 26

7T
H S

T

SE
 26

1S
T S

T

176TH AVE SE

203RD AVE SE

166TH PL SE

.

Ci
ty 

of 
Co

vin
gto

n .

C
re

at
ed

 B
y:

 S
ha

w
n 

B
uc

k 
05

/2
9/

14

O
:\C

ov
in

gt
on

_G
IS

_L
ib

ra
ry

\P
R

O
JE

C
T_

FO
LD

E
R

\P
ub

lic
_W

or
ks

\S
tre

et
_L

ig
ht

_D
at

a\
st

re
et

_l
ig

ht
s.

m
xd

1 
in

ch
 =

 2
,0

00
 fe

et

Ci
ty 

Ow
ne

d S
tre

et 
Lig

hts

C
ity

 L
im

its

!
SR

 5
16

 S
te

el
 C

ob
ra

 H
ea

d 
(5

6)
!

Ac
or

n 
S

ty
le

 L
ig

ht
s 

(1
09

)
!

C
ob

ra
 H

ea
d 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
Po

le
 (3

6)
!

Fi
be

rg
la

ss
 G

re
en

 C
ob

ra
 H

ea
d 

(2
90

)
C

ov
in

gt
on

 R
oa

ds

ATTACHMENT 1

93 of 98



Co
br

ah
ea

ds
 o

n 
Po

w
er

 P
ol

es
 (S

ch
ed

ul
e 

53
)

HP
S 

La
m

p 
W

at
ta

ge
N

um
be

r 
In

st
al

le
d

Co
st

 to
 

ch
an

ge
 

ou
t t

o 
LE

D

Es
tim

at
ed

 
to

ta
l c

ha
ng

e 
ou

t c
os

ts
PS

E 
Re

ba
te

HP
S 

La
m

p 
W

at
ta

ge
N

um
be

r 
In

st
al

le
d

Sc
he

du
le

 5
3 

HP
S 

Ra
te

 
PS

E 
O

w
ne

d

An
nu

al
 H

PS
 

Co
st

s
LE

D 
Fl

at
 

Ra
te

An
nu

al
 L

ED
 

Co
st

s

70
W

0
16

2.
75

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

70
W

0
10

.3
4

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8.
02

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
0W

6
19

3.
60

$ 
 

1,
16

1.
60

$ 
   

   
24

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

10
0W

6
11

.6
6

$ 
   

   
83

9.
52

$ 
   

   
 

8.
38

$ 
   

   
60

3.
36

$ 
   

   
 

15
0W

1
36

4.
47

$ 
 

36
4.

47
$ 

   
   

   
60

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

0W
1

13
.7

8
$ 

   
   

16
5.

36
$ 

   
   

 
10

.2
9

$ 
   

 
12

3.
48

$ 
   

   
 

20
0

11
50

5.
29

$ 
 

5,
55

8.
19

$ 
   

   
77

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

20
0

11
16

.5
7

$ 
   

   
2,

18
7.

24
$ 

   
12

.4
6

$ 
   

 
1,

64
4.

72
$ 

   
25

0W
0

67
9.

19
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

0W
0

18
.6

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
15

.1
9

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

40
0W

18
79

4.
04

$ 
 

14
,2

92
.7

2
$ 

   
1,

80
0.

00
$ 

   
   

40
0W

18
25

.2
1

$ 
   

   
5,

44
5.

36
$ 

   
17

.4
4

$ 
   

 
3,

76
7.

04
$ 

   
36

21
,3

76
.9

8
$ 

   
2,

87
0.

00
$ 

   
  

36
8,

63
7.

48
$ 

   
6,

13
8.

60
$ 

   

18
,5

06
.9

8
$ 

   
An

nu
al

 S
av

in
gs

2,
49

8.
88

$ 
   

Pa
yb

ac
k(

Yr
s)

7.
41

Gr
ee

n 
Fi

be
rg

la
ss

 C
ob

ra
he

ad
 (S

ch
ed

ul
e 

52
)

HP
S 

La
m

p 
W

at
ta

ge
N

um
be

r 
In

st
al

le
d

Co
st

 to
 

ch
an

ge
 

ou
t t

o 
LE

D

Es
tim

at
ed

 
to

ta
l c

ha
ng

e 
ou

t c
os

ts
PS

E 
Re

ba
te

HP
S 

La
m

p 
W

at
ta

ge
N

um
be

r 
In

st
al

le
d

Sc
he

du
le

 5
3 

HP
S 

Ra
te

 
PS

E 
O

w
ne

d

An
nu

al
 H

PS
 

Co
st

s
LE

D 
Fl

at
 

Ra
te

An
nu

al
 L

ED
 

Co
st

s

70
W

3
19

5.
55

$ 
 

58
6.

65
$ 

   
   

   
12

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

70
W

3
10

.3
4

$ 
   

   
37

2.
24

$ 
   

   
 

8.
02

$ 
   

   
28

8.
72

$ 
   

   
 

10
0W

38
22

6.
40

$ 
 

8,
60

3.
20

$ 
   

   
1,

52
0.

00
$ 

   
   

10
0W

38
11

.6
6

$ 
   

   
5,

31
6.

96
$ 

   
8.

38
$ 

   
   

3,
82

1.
28

$ 
   

15
0W

14
39

7.
27

$ 
 

5,
56

1.
78

$ 
   

   
84

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

15
0W

14
13

.7
8

$ 
   

   
2,

31
5.

04
$ 

   
10

.2
9

$ 
   

 
1,

72
8.

72
$ 

   
20

0W
21

8
53

8.
09

$ 
 

11
7,

30
3.

62
$ 

 
15

,2
60

.0
0

$ 
   

20
0

21
8

16
.5

7
$ 

   
   

43
,3

47
.1

2
$ 

 
12

.4
6

$ 
   

 
32

,5
95

.3
6

$ 
 

25
0W

12
71

1.
99

$ 
 

8,
54

3.
88

$ 
   

   
1,

20
0.

00
$ 

   
   

25
0W

12
18

.6
5

$ 
   

   
2,

68
5.

60
$ 

   
15

.1
9

$ 
   

 
2,

18
7.

36
$ 

   
40

0W
5

82
6.

84
$ 

 
4,

13
4.

20
$ 

   
   

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
40

0W
5

25
.2

1
$ 

   
   

1,
51

2.
60

$ 
   

17
.4

4
$ 

   
 

1,
04

6.
40

$ 
   

29
0

14
4,

73
3.

33
$ 

 
19

,4
40

.0
0

$ 
   

29
0

55
,5

49
.5

6
$ 

 
41

,6
67

.8
4

$ 
 

12
5,

29
3.

33
$ 

 
An

nu
al

 S
av

in
gs

13
,8

81
.7

2
$ 

 

Pa
yb

ac
k(

Yr
s)

9.
03

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
 li

gh
ts

 a
re

 A
co

rn
 st

yl
e 

(1
09

 li
gh

ts
) a

nd
 S

R 
51

6 
st

ee
l p

ol
e 

st
yl

e 
(5

6 
lig

ht
s)

.  
At

 th
is 

tim
e,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 c
os

t e
st

im
at

es
 fr

om
 P

SE
 fo

r t
he

 A
co

rn
 

st
yl

e.
  T

he
 S

R 
51

6 
lig

ht
s w

ou
ld

 b
e 

sim
ila

r t
o 

th
e 

"C
ob

ra
he

ad
s o

n 
Po

w
er

 P
ol

e"
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
co

st
s.

  H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f t

ho
se

 p
ol

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 

op
er

at
ed

 b
y 

PS
E 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

on
ve

rt
ed

 se
pa

ra
te

ly
.

N
et

 In
st

al
la

tio
n 

Co
st

s

N
et

 In
st

al
la

tio
n 

Co
st

s

ATTACHMENT 2

94 of 98



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  June 10, 2014 
 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 
 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, June 24, 2014 Special Study Session 
 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, June 24, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

95 of 98



 Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION 

Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 
 

Tuesday, June 24, 2014 - 6:00 p.m. 
 

 **Please note meeting start time ** 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City 
Council, Commission (if applicable) and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may 
involve presentations, feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the 
staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Fund Balance (Hendrickson) 

  
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization.  Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff.  Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows. 
 
ADJOURN      
               
               
 
For disability accommodations call 253-480-2400 at least 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay service call (800) 833-6384 and 
ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400.  
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will immediately follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 06/04/14 

 

96 of 98



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
 
Tuesday, June 24, 2014                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                               16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Special Study Session is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Town Center Economic Impact and Infrastructure Study Presentation (Matheson) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 13, 2014 Regular Meeting; May 27, 2014 Regular Meeting; June 3, 2014 

Tri Cities Special Joint Meeting; June 9, 2014 Special Study Session; June 10, 2014 
Special Study Session, and June 10, 2014 Regular Meeting 

C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Resolution Authorizing Investment in the Washington State Local Government Investment 

Pool (Hendrickson) 
C-4. Approve an Interlocal Agreement with King County to Accept Parks Levy Funds (Feser) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  June 12 meeting. 
• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  June 12 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  June 18 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Sean Smith:  June 19 meeting; June 5 meeting canceled. 
• Future Meetings:  Economic Development Council Next Meeting:  June 26. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Approve Ordinances Revising Commission Charters (Scott) 
2. Discuss Selection of Citizen and Honorary Citizen of the Year (Slate) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 

Draft 
as of 06/04/14 

 

97 of 98

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN 
 
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 

98 of 98


	06-10-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, June 10, 2014                                                                           City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Agenda Item 1 Green Sheet 06-10-2014 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Agenda Item 1 Attachment 05.13.14 Special Joint Mtg w-CEDC & Chamber
	Consent Agenda Item 2 Green Sheet 06-10-2014 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Agenda Item 2 Attachment
	Consent Agenda Item 3 Green Sheet 2014-06-10 Tahoma School District Ground Lease Agreement
	Consent Agenda Item 3 Attachment 1
	Consent Agenda Item 4 Green Sheet 06-10-14 PSE Agreement for CIP 1127
	Consent Agenda Item 5 Green Sheet 06-10-14 Stormwater System Cleaning Agreement
	Consent Agenda Item 5 Attachment 1 Bid Proposal Log
	Bids Received

	Consent Agenda Item 5 Attachment 2 Agreement for Services - Everson's Econo-Vac, Inc
	AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
	RECITALS:
	City of Covington
	Attn:  Maintenance Supervisor
	CITY OF COVINGTON
	By: Derek Matheson
	EVERSON’S ECONO-VAC, INC.
	By: ______________________________
	COUNTY OF ____________)
	GIVEN my hand and official seal this ___ day of June, 2014.
	EXHIBIT B Vactor map.pdf
	zone1
	zone2
	zone3
	zone4


	Consent Agenda Item 6 Green Sheet 06-10-14 6 Yr TIP 2015-2020 Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-6

	Consent Agenda Item 6 Attachment 1 06-10-14 6 Yr TIP 2015-2020 Resolution
	PASSED in open and regular session on this 10th day of June, 2014.
	TIP 2015-2020 SEPA DNS_060614.docx.pdf
	TIP 2015-2020 SEPA DNS_060614.docx.pdf
	Attachment 1 - 3 6 Year TIP.pdf


	Consent Agenda Item 7 Green Sheet 06-10-14 G  O Design Agreement Blue Sheet DV
	Consent Agenda Item C-7

	Consent Agenda Item 7 Attachment 1 - Contract for Services
	Appendix A Covington contract agreement with engineering consultant - KC Supplementary Conditions.pdf
	1. SUPERSEDING
	2. INCLUSIONS
	3. SECTION XVII  Indemnification.
	4. SECTION XVII.B.   City Agreement to Repay
	5. SECTION XVIII Insurance Requirements
	6. SECTION XIX Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity
	7. SECTION XXI Nondiscrimination in subcontracting practices
	8. SECTION XXII Section 504 and Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA).
	9. SECTION XXVII.B No Preferential Treatment
	10. SECTION XXIX Political Activity Prohibited
	11. SECTION XXXIII Proprietary Rights


	Item 1 Blue Sheet 06-10-14 LED Streetlights Blue Sheet
	Item 1 Attachment 1 06-10-14 LED Street Light Map - Att. 1
	Item 1 Attachment 2 06-10-14 LED Conversion Costs - Att. 2
	Sheet1

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	06-24-2014 Special Study Session
	Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington
	Tuesday, June 24, 2014 - 6:00 p.m.
	CALL CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA


	06-24-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, June 24, 2014                                                                           City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




